
 
 

 
 
 
5 October 2021 
 
 
To: Councillors D Coleman, Critchley, Hunter, Hutton, O'Hara, D Scott, Mrs Scott and Walsh  

 
The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 14 October 2021 at 6.00 pm 
In Council Chamber, Blackpool Town Hall 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:  
 
(1) the type of interest concerned either a 
 

(a) personal interest 
(b) prejudicial interest  
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) 

 
and 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned 
 
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 

 
2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 1 JULY 2021  (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
 To agree the minutes of the last meeting held informally on 1 July 2021 as a true and 

correct record. 
 

3  PUBLIC SPEAKING   
 

 To consider any applications from members of the public to speak at the meeting. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



4  EXECUTIVE DECISIONS AND CABINET MEMBER  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

 To consider the Executive and Cabinet Member decisions within the portfolio of the 
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health taken since the last meeting of the 
Committee. 

 
5  WHOLE SYSTEM FLOW AND DISCHARGES  (Pages 13 - 16) 

 
 The purpose of the report is to provide an update on system flow and the discharge 

process as requested following the recent committee work planning workshop. 
 

6  ADULT SERVICES OVERVIEW  (Pages 17 - 40) 
 

 To provide an overview of the whole directorate including financial position and impact 
of the pandemic. 

 
7  RECOVERY OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES AND COVID  (Pages 41 - 48) 

 
 At previous a Scrutiny Committee a request was made for a report on the recovery of 

public health commissioned services from COVID measures. This report aims to 
summarise the impact of COVID and recovery for each of the main public health 
services. 

 
8  DEVELOPMENT OF THE FYLDE COAST PLACE-BASED PARTNERSHIP  (Pages 49 - 64) 

 
 This report provides an update on the development of the Fylde coast place-based 

partnership, formerly known as the Integrated Care Partnership. The report provides 
the national, regional and local context, focusing in detail on the common local 
developments to date. 

 
9  SCRUTINY WORKPLAN UPDATE REPORT  (Pages 65 - 74) 

 
 To review the work of the Committee, the implementation of recommendations and 

note the update on the Enhanced Network Model of Acute Stroke Care and 
Rehabilitation in Lancashire and South Cumbria briefing. 

 
10  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING   

 
 To note the date and time of the next meeting as 2 December 2021, commencing at 

6.00pm in the Council Chamber. 
 

 

Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
Please wear face masks when moving around the building and maintain social distancing. 
 

 
Other information: 



 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager, Tel: 01253 
477213, e-mail sharon.davis@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
THURSDAY, 1 JULY 2021 

 
 

 
Present:  
 
Councillor Hutton (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors 
 
D Coleman 
Critchley 

Hunter 
O'Hara 

D Scott 
Mrs Scott 

Wing 

 
In Attendance:  
 
Mr Roy Fisher, Chair, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
Ms Beth Goodman, Deputy Director of Commissioning, Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) 
Dr Neil Hartley-Smith, Executive Clinical Director, Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre CCGs 
Mr Peter Murphy, Director of Nursing, AHP and Quality, Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 
Ms Kate Newton, Performance and Improvement Manager, Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre 
CCGs 
Mrs Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 
 
Councillor Jo Farrell, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health 
Councillor Maxine Callow, Chair, Scrutiny Leadership Board 
 
 
Prior to the start of the meeting, the Chairman explained that it was an informal meeting 
as agreed at Annual Council on 24 May 2021. 
 
1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion. 
 
2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 17 MARCH 2021 
 
The minutes of the last meeting held on 17 March 2021 were signed by the Chairman as a 
true and correct record subject to the inclusion of Councillors Mrs Callow in the record of 
attendance. 
 
3  PUBLIC SPEAKING 
 
The Committee noted that there had been no requests from members of the public to 
speak on this occasion. 
 
4  BLACKPOOL CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE 
 
Ms Kate Newton, Performance and Improvement Manager, Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) introduced the end of year performance data for 
Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) and invited questions from the 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
THURSDAY, 1 JULY 2021 

 
 

Committee. 
 
Members referred to the cancer waiting times and raised the ongoing concerns relating 
to breast cancer targets. Ms Newton advised that a long term locum in radiology had 
been employed in order to address wait times and noted that the target related to those 
who were ‘breast symptomatic’. It was hoped that the position would be much improved 
in the near future and it was agreed that the data for May and June 2021 would be 
circulated to the Committee as soon as it was available. 
 
The Committee raised questions relating to the term ‘medically fit for discharge’. In 
response, Mr Peter Murphy, Director of Nursing, AHP and Quality, Blackpool Teaching 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust advised that the term meant that a member of the 
medical team had assessed a patient and determined that there was nothing more 
medically needed or that could be provided and the patient could therefore be 
discharged. The decision could be made by one clinical professional in their own right 
with patients and families able to ask for a second opinion. Clinical professionals might 
also liaise with other professionals involved in the patient’s treatment prior to making a 
decision. 
 
In relation to the proposed merger of the eight Clinical Commissioning Groups in 
Lancashire and South Cumbria into the Integrated Care System (ICS), Mr Roy Fisher, Chair, 
Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) reported that the requisite legislation was 
expected in July 2021. The ICS would sit above more localised Integrated Care Partnerships 
(ICPs), with the local ICP covering the Fylde Coast. Dr Neil Hartley-Smith, Executive Clinical 
Director, Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre CCGs added that CCGs would cease to exist in March 
2022, with shadow arrangements for the new structure already being put in place. The ICP 
would bring together the acute trust, primary care, social care, mental health provision 
and the voluntary, community and faith sector to deliver healthcare provision to the local 
community. It was agreed that a presentation on the development of the ICS and ICP 
would be provided to the Committee towards the end of 2021. 
 
It was noted that the report provided used an increased number of acronyms that made it 
inaccessible to the wider public and it was requested that future reports contained a 
glossary and that one be sent through for the report on the agenda. 
 
Members went on to consider the targets in relation to dementia and queried whether 
they were robust and challenging enough. Dr Hartley-Smith advised that the targets were 
national targets which had been rolled forward due to the pandemic. Ms Beth Goodman, 
Deputy Director of Commissioning, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group added that the 
targets were not seen as an end result but as a minimum level to exceed. She advised that 
the CCG was consulted with regarding targets and could feed in the Committee’s views on 
this particular target to NHS England. 
 
It was considered that all health services in Blackpool had made the best possible efforts 
during particularly difficult circumstances during the pandemic. The implications of which 
had been keenly felt on all aspects of provision. Dr Hartley-Smith noted that in these 
difficult circumstances, when considering performance in Blackpool against that of 
neighbouring localities, Blackpool compared favourably. Members commended the work 
of the NHS during the pandemic and emphasised their desire to carry out their role Page 2



MINUTES OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
THURSDAY, 1 JULY 2021 

 
 

effectively and ensure that patients continued to receive the treatment expected and that 
services returned to normal as quickly as possible. 
 
The Committee also requested data on the number of patients ready to be discharged and 
being delayed due to waits for prescription medication. It was noted that timely discharge 
was a key goal of the Trust and that the data requested could be provided following the 
meeting. 
 
The Committee agreed: 
1. To receive the ‘breast symptomatic’ data for May and June 2021 as soon as it was 

available. 
2. To receive a presentation on the development of the ICS and ICP in due course. 
3. To receive a glossary of the acronyms included in the report. 
4. To receive data on the number of patients ready to be discharged and being delayed 

due to waits for prescription medication. 
 
5  AVOIDABLE RE-ADMISSIONS 
 
Mr Peter Murphy, Director of Nursing, AHP and Quality, Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust presented the data and analysis of re-admissions to the Committee. He 
highlighted that the topic of re-admissions was very complex with many variables but at 
times some 90% of patients at Blackpool Victoria Hospital (BVH) were patients that had 
been re-admitted. He outlined that the pandemic had reduced the number of re-
admissions and that BVH currently had the lowest number of re-admissions of the Trusts 
in the Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System area. 
 
Some of the complexities were identified as: 

 Patients originally admitted for one medical problem and re-admitted for another 
issue within a different department. 

 Patients originally admitted at a different hospital and re-admitted to BVH. 

 Patients originally admitted through the emergency department and re-admitted 
within a specialty. 

 
It was considered that the matter was incredibly complex and therefore it was difficult to 
identify what could be done to prevent re-admission when potentially each case was 
individual with patients often experiencing multiple medical problems at one time. 
 
Members noted that in relation to the different departments ‘Urology’ had a much higher 
percentage of re-admissions than many others and requested a further detailed analysis 
of the re-admissions to Urology to be provided in order to better understand the reasons 
why these occurred. Mr Murphy agreed to provide such an analysis and noted that the 
Trust continued to learn from re-admissions, noting the impact on patients. 
 
The Committee agreed: 
To receive a detailed analysis of re-admissions to the Urology department at BVH 
following the meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
THURSDAY, 1 JULY 2021 

 
 

6  BLACKPOOL TEACHING HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST PROGRESS UPDATE 
 
Mr Peter Murphy, Director of Nursing, AHP and Quality, Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust reported that the Trust had understandably been overwhelmingly 
focussed on dealing with and responding to the pandemic during the past 18 months. 
However, it had also been necessary and important to commit to make the improvements 
identified through the Care Quality Commission inspection. He noted that significant 
progress had been made with regards to the ‘must’ and ‘should’ dos identified during the 
inspection with only nine out of 249 outstanding. 
 
Mr Murphy noted that the Trust had historically been an outlier in relation to mortality 
data and that a lack of improvement had been a source of frustration. The Trust was 
finally starting to see data move in the right direction furthermore demonstrating the 
improvements made. In response to questions, he added that the one outstanding ‘must’ 
do was in relation to a ligature free reablement room which had proved difficult due to 
building layout. However, he noted that with the development of the new ‘Emergency 
Village’ at the hospital site, this would be remedied.  
 
Members requested more detail regarding the eight outstanding ‘should’ dos and it was 
agreed that full detail would be provided following the meeting but that they were all in 
progress and that the Trust had introduced a new ‘blue’ requirement before full sign off 
which provided evidence of the impact of the changes made not just that they had been 
completed. Mr Murphy added that an independent team of nurses had been employed to 
provide assessment of services across the hospital which would ensure quality of care and 
that there were over 160 care standards in place with bronze, silver and gold award given 
through the COAST system.  
 
In response to further questions, Mr Murphy also advised that the new emergency village 
was a new building and would provide additional emergency department capacity and 
more room to undertake clinical assessments and that the recruitment process for the 
appointment of a new Chief Executive had commenced. It was noted that the current 
Chief Executive had led on a significant number of improvements at the Trust and it was 
envisaged that the new appointment would continue the improvement. 
 
The food offer provided at the hospital was also discussed, with it noted that a wide range 
of dietary requirements could be provided for including vegan, halal and kosher. Mr 
Murphy added that the Board Members at the Trust were due to test the food in the 
upcoming weeks to ensure its quality for patients and that he would confirm following 
the meeting that gluten free options could also be provided. 
 
The Committee agreed: 
To request full detail be provided of the outstanding ‘must’ and ‘should’ dos arising from 
the Care Quality Commission inspection be provided following the meeting. 
 
7  SCRUTINY WORKPLAN 
 
The Committee discussed its revised workplan in detail and noted that an update on the 
development of the Integrated Care System/Partnership would be added to the meeting 
to be held in October 2021 as agreed earlier in the meeting.  Page 4



MINUTES OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
THURSDAY, 1 JULY 2021 

 
 

 
Members referred to the COAST system discussed in the progress update from Blackpool 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and suggested that further information be 
provided on the system to a future meeting including a breakdown of which departments 
had been awarded bronze, silver or gold status. 
 
Subject to these additions the Committee agreed the workplan and noted the table of 
recommendations. 
  
The Committee also spoke about the possibility of receiving dementia awareness training 
and it was agreed to explore the potential of such a session. 
 
Further concerns were also raised in relation to small procedures not currently being 
provided due to the pandemic such as ear syringing and Councillor Farrell, Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care and Health agreed to explore these concerns and report 
back to the Committee with her findings. 
 
8  DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
The Committee noted the date and time of the next meeting as the special meeting to be 
held on 28 September 2021, commencing at 6.00pm. 
 
  
  
  
  
Chairman 
  
(The meeting ended at 7.28 pm) 
  
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: 
Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 
Tel: 01253 477213 
E-mail: sharon.davis@blackpool.gov.uk 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 

Date of Meeting:  14 October 2021 

 

EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS 
 
1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider the Executive and Cabinet Member decisions within the portfolio of the 
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health taken since the last meeting of the 
Committee. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 Members will have the opportunity to question the relevant Cabinet Member in 
relation to the decisions taken. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To ensure that the opportunity is given for all Executive and Cabinet Member 
decisions to be scrutinised and held to account. 
 

3.2 Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.3 Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

4.0 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

4.1 None. 
 

5.0 Council Priority: 
 

5.1 The relevant Council Priority is:  

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience. 
 

6.0 Background Information 
 

6.1 
 

This report is presented to ensure Members are provided with a timely update on the 
decisions taken by the Executive and Cabinet Members. It provides a process where 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



the Committee can raise questions and a response be provided. 
 

6.2 Members are encouraged to seek updates on decisions and will have the opportunity 
to raise any issues. 
 

6.3 The following Cabinet Member is responsible for the decisions taken in this report 
and has been invited to attend the meeting: 
 

 Councillor Jo Farrell, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health 
 

6.4 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

7.0 List of Appendices: 
 

 

7.1 Appendix 4(a) Summary of Executive and Cabinet Member decisions 
taken. 
 

 

8.0 Financial considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 
 

9.0 Legal considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None. 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 
 

12.0 Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations: 
 

12.1 None. 
 

13.0 Internal/External Consultation undertaken: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

14.0 Background papers: 
 

14.1 None. 

Page 8



 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(a) 

 

DECISION / OUTCOME DESCRIPTION NUMBER DATE CABINET 
MEMBER 

DISPENSATION FROM CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES- 
DRUG AND ALCOHOL TREATMENT CONTRACT 
 

The Cabinet Member resolved as follows: 
 

1. To approve the direct award as a dispensation 
from Contract Procedure Rules due to events 
unforeseeable by the contracting authority.  This 
includes the Coronavirus pandemic and an influx 
of non-recurrent funding directly related to drug 
and alcohol treatment provision, or funding for 
services with considerable inter-dependencies.   

 
2. To agree an additional 1 year contract with 

Delphi Medical for drug and alcohol treatment 
ending on the 31 March 2023, with an option to 
extend for a further 12 months to 31 March 
2024. 
 

If the contract is tendered in time for a 1 April 2022 
start date, there may be some destabilisation to the 
service, which could jeopardise service delivery in the 
interim, with adverse effects on other programmes of 
work.  If the contract exception is extended for a 
further 12 months, the Public Health team can 
undertake a service re-design and transformation, 
which will include learning from the new programmes 
of work in preparation for tender. 
 

PH55/2021 02/07/2021 Councillor 
Farrell, Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

P
age 11



Appendix 4(a) 

 

DISPENSATION FROM CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES- 
INTEGRATED SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICE ALL AGES AND 
INTEGRATED SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICES YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

The Cabinet Member resolved as follows: 
  

1. To approve the direct award for the Integrated 
Sexual Health Service (All Ages) and Integrated 
Sexual Health Service (Young People) contracts 
as a dispensation from Contract Procedure Rules 
due to events unforeseeable by the contracting 
authority which includes the Coronavirus 
pandemic and the impact on collaborative 
procurement and service redesign 
developments with Lancashire County Council 
(LCC). 

 
2. To agree an additional plus 2 year contract for 

the Integrated Sexual Health Service (All Ages) 
and Integrated Sexual Health Service (Young 
People) contracts with Blackpool Teaching 
Hospital Foundation Trust ending on the 31 
March 2025. 
 

Whilst other service providers exist, the market for 
specialist sexual health services and requirements is 
limited and an extension would allow time for service 
re-design and allow alignment with Lancashire County 
Council tendering start date of 1st April 2025. 
 
Under section 32c of the procurement regulations, 
Public Health can give a direct award for a contract 
without following a competitive process for reasons 
of ‘urgency brought about by events unforeseeable 
by the contracting authority’. 
 

PH57/2021 23/07/21 Councillor 
Farrell, Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

P
age 12



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 

Relevant Officer: 

 
Dr. Neil Hartley-Smith, Executive Clinical Director, Blackpool, 
Fylde and Wyre CCGs 
 

Date of Meeting:  14 October 2021 

 

WHOLE SYSTEM FLOW AND DISCHARGES 
 

1.0  
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1  
 

The purpose of the report is to provide an update on system flow and the discharge process 
as requested following the recent committee work planning workshop. 
 

2.0  Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1  Committee members are asked to note the contents of the report and identify any issues for 
further scrutiny. 
 
 

3.0  Reasons for recommendation(s): 
 

3.1  
 

To ensure committee members are apprised of the current mechanisms in place to deliver 
safe and effective care, and optimal system flow and discharges. 
 

3.2  Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by 
the Council? 
 

No 

3.3  Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 
 

N/A 

4.0  Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

4.1  Not applicable  
 

5.0  Council priority: 
 

5.1  The relevant Council priority is  
● Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience. 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



6.0  Background information 
 

6.1  Partners across the Fylde Coast system have been working closely together for some time on 
joint approaches to improve the patient journey from the point of care through to discharge, 
to ensure optimal delivery of safe and effective care and wider system resilience.  We have 
provided examples within this report of some of these approaches and we look forward to a 
more detailed and robust discussion at the Committee to expand on the high-level narrative 
we have provided.   
 
a) Admission Avoidance 
 

● The Emergency Department (ED) Streamer scheme will replace the existing ‘NHS 
Reception Point’ in ED (which triages walk in patients using the NHS 111-triage 
system) to enhance more effective triage and deflections.  Initially there will be no 
change to the patient journey as one system is being replaced by another. 
Evidence from the pilot shows that both systems send the same number of patients 
into the Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) and ED.   ED Streamer does have the 
potential due to its connection to the Directory of Services (DoS) to possibly direct 
patients to other services, although this element is still in development.  Blackpool is  
on track to ‘go live’ with ED Streamer at the end of October 2021. 
 

● NHS 111 triages and directs patients for low acuity conditions directly to appropriate 
services i.e. GP, Pharmacy, Clinical Assessment Service (CAS), self-care. 

● Community Pharmacy Consultation Service implementation will ‘go live’ at the end of 
October 2021 which will enable the ED and CAS to directly book into a Pharmacy as 
appropriate. 

● Two-hour crisis response expansion of workforce which will increase capacity for 
more patients to be reviewed, therefore deflecting patients away from the ED. 

● The Lancashire integrated home response and falls lifting service is in place to provide 
a non-emergency visiting response with home responders to help residents in 
Lancashire who have fallen in their own homes.  

● Ongoing and proactive self-care campaigns including social media and videos are run 
by the Integrated Care Board (ICB) and locally at Place Based Partnership (PBP) level. 

 
b) Primary Care Networks (PCN) 
 

● Greater provision of proactive, personalised, co-ordinated, and integrated health and 
social care through the collaboration of practices which form PCNs. PCNs work across 
community, mental health, social care, and pharmacy services to provide high quality 
care delivery out of hospital and closer to home.  

● Each PCN has employed ‘Additional Roles’ via a nationally funded scheme. These roles 
vary by PCN, however complement and support GP Practice teams and 
Neighbourhood Care Teams (NCTs) allowing a wider opportunity for care to be given 
closer to home.  Social Prescribing Link Workers are an example of one of the 

Page 14



additional roles which allow practices to refer suitable patients into the Social 
Prescribing Link Workers for exploration of community activities and services which 
can help improve their health and wellbeing.  

 
c) Neighbourhood Care Teams (NCT) 
 

● Provide integrated multidisciplinary teams proactively developing and delivering 
services in a patient’s preferred place of care in line with their needs. 

● Provide targeted support to housebound and care home patients with a focus on 
prevention, self-care, and wellbeing. 

● NCT operational meetings are in place where PCNs/NCTs discuss operational issues 
and service developments as part of a continuous improvement cycle.  

 
d) Care Home Team 
  

● The Care Home Team supports post discharge from A&E or hospital reviews within 72 
hours, to ensure the correct care is in place to support vulnerable patients who need 
extra support and therefore may be susceptible to readmission. 

● The Care Home Team provides proactive liaison with other community services and 
pathways i.e. Community Frailty Service; Rapid Response; Community IV Therapy; End 
of Life Care pathways to ensure optimum care is delivered.  

● The Care Home Team supports active care planning and responsibility for liaising with 
Fylde Coast Medical Services (FCMS) care coordination for out of hours care. 

 
e) Hospital Discharge 
 

● Hospital Discharge Policy Guidance continues to be implemented by all system 
partners who can support patient discharges i.e. local authorities, Home First, Single 
Point of Discharge. 

● The Transfer of Care Hub is now in situ where the local PBP organisations work 
collaboratively to support safe and effective integrated discharges. 

● Both Local Authorities routinely and proactively provide support to care homes 
around infection control, Covid-19, communications around pressures in the Trust, 
and general communications around national guidance. 

● System calls will run throughout the winter period to support and facilitate discharges 
together with a key focus on admission avoidance mechanisms. 

● Additional capacity has been identified via a number of winter schemes for all system 
partners to increase focus on admission avoidance, patient flow and discharges i.e. 
additional clinical capacity in the UTCs, additional clinical capacity in the CAS and 
recruitment of Discharge Facilitators. 

 
6.2  Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No 
  

 

Page 15



7.0  List of Appendices: 
 

7.1  None. 
 

8.0  Financial considerations: 
 

8.1  None. 
 

9.0  Legal considerations: 
 

9.1  None. 
 

10.0  Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1  None. 
 

11.0  Equalities considerations: 
 

11.1  None. 
 

12.0  Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations: 
 

12.1  None. 
 

13.0  Internal/external consultation undertaken: 
 

13.1  N/A. 
 

14.0  Background papers: 
 

14.1  N/A. 
 

 

Page 16



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Karen Smith, Director of Adult Services 

Date of Meeting: 14 October 2021 

 

ADULT SERVICES OVERVIEW 
 

1.0  
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1  
 

To provide an overview of the whole directorate including financial position and impact of 
the pandemic. 
 

2.0  Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1  To comment upon progress being made, propose potential improvements and highlight any 
areas for further scrutiny which will be reported back as appropriate. 

  
3.0  Reasons for recommendation(s): 

 
3.1  
 

To ensure constructive and robust scrutiny of these areas of work. 
 

3.2  Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the 
Council? 
 

No 

3.3  Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 

Yes 

4.0  Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

4.1  Not applicable. 
 

5.0  Council priority: 
 

5.1  The relevant Council priority is  

 The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool 

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience. 
 

6.0  Background information 
 

6.1 
 
 

Covid has impacted significantly on the way in which services in Adult Social Care (ASC) have 

been organised, located and delivered since the start of the pandemic. These were 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 
 
 

6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

comprehensively detailed in the report delivered in March 2021.  

The account below updates that report, captures some of the across the board impact, and 

then breaks down into some of the team/service area specific impacts and how these are 

being dealt with.  

Staffing 

Adult social care staff continue to operate in a covid secure way as they have since the start 

of the pandemic. Staff continue to work from a home base with a core remaining in the office 

observing the social distancing guidance, on a rota’d basis. As has been the case since the 

start, those not able to come into the office continue to be supported by regular contact with 

their line managers to ensure that they receive the support needed, as well as allocating 

work and supervising staff in their work. Guidance regarding working from home remains in 

place and is adhered to by those staff affected, who undertake work that can be done from a 

home setting. 

The mandated vaccination arrangements for staff who have to enter residential settings is 

being managed. We have small, single figure, numbers who remain resistant to accepting a 

vaccination, and are able to make reasonable adjustments to the way in which work is 

allocated to manage this with the guidance as it is. The overwhelming majority of front line 

staff have taken advantage of the vaccination programme which has been available since 

January. Despite this we have had some staff off work due to being either asymptomatic or 

symptomatic. 

Service Delivery 

Face to face work is now returning to pre-pandemic levels, although some of the efficiencies 

that have been developed have been retained. For very vulnerable people in NHS and Care 

settings virtual assessments have continued, apart from those occasions when it would not 

be viable or professional decision making over-ruled this as an option.  

Assessing for deprivation of liberty has been a significantly impacted area, due to the 

restrictions of visiting to care homes. However, this has been mitigated by the use of video 

and audio technology by both medical staff and Best Interest Assessors so there has been no 

backlog of work accruing over the lockdown period, and this remains the case. Demand has 

increased slightly as demonstrated in the figures below. 

 

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 Number of applications has continued to rise year on year 

 Peak in authorised applications during February 2020.  Some of this may have been due to 

data cleansing in preparation for the return at year-end although we see a dip in March 

(during the first national lockdown). 

Business activity has reflected to an extent the impact of the restrictions that have been 

imposed under the national lockdowns. Whilst we saw a decline in assessments during the 

first three months last year, as things opened again we experienced a rise in the three 

summer months above the numbers for the same period last year. Again, as restrictions were 

imposed in October, assessments reduced and we expected to see a consequent rise as 

things opened up again following the roadmap declarations, as was indeed the case, although 

this has now eased off. 

Page 19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

As settings opened again and visiting resumed we expected to see a rise in Safeguarding 

activity, and this has proven to be the case. The figures below demonstrate this.  

ADULT SAFEGUARDING 
 

Concerns Raised Concerns Leading to Further Enquiries 
 

2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 
 

770 841 892 322 333 358 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 Average number of concerns raised in last 3y = 798 (total in year).   

 Decline in the number of concerns reported in 2020/21, 

 Monthly average since July 2019 = 68 

o Significant decrease during the start of lockdown, peaking in August and 

October 

 Increases in numbers reported and concluded where the source of risk was alleged to 

be a service provided, peaking in March 2021. 

Demand for domiciliary care hours commissioned has remained significantly higher per week, 

both in terms of requests and total hours commissioned, and the average size of the package. 

The figures obviously fluctuate on a daily basis but there are around 2000 extra hours per 

week commissioned (an approximate increase of 17%) and the average package size has 

increased by approximately an hour. Added to this are several hundred hours awaiting being 

picked up by Providers at any one time, a figure that has grown since early summer. 

Combined this adds up to over a 20% increase since 2019. 

We are, in line with national policy directions, working towards a “home first” approach to 

try and enable people to return to, often their first choice, their own home. This does explain 

some of this dramatic increase. However, this is only part of the story. Some of the main 

contributory factors include the following: the accelerated discharges from hospital; 

increased caution in considering moving to a residential setting; an increase in general 

morbidity in the population by people not seeking medical intervention as quickly as they 

may have done in the past.  

This increase in demand has led to increases in waiting times. Added to this the high turnover 

rates in domiciliary care staff, and the high numbers impacted by the “pingdemic” have 

created shortages of staff and therefore operational difficulties in meeting needs. It cannot 

be over-emphasized how significant this can be for the service user and any family/carers 

who are supporting them. This has meant on occasion offering alternative options, such as 

short term care in a residential setting, although this is often not a favoured approach by 

many and increases the risk of deconditioning making a short term fix a long term outcome.     

 

Page 21



6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Users and Carers 

Since the relaxation of contact started in March and the cessation of the lockdown period in 

July face to face work has re-started on more normalised basis. We are confident that this 

leads to a more holistic assessment which is more personalised, and will continue to move 

back to putting the “social” in the “work”.  As can be seen from the table below, the longer 

term trajectory of request for support by service users is upwards, and after the decline 

following the first lockdown, the first three months of this financial year led to a sharp 

increase, although as mentioned above this has now tempered to more normal levels. 

Carers support also decreased, again probably due to a combination of factors including 

restrictions on visiting, reluctance to accept visits, the furlough scheme etc. but these are 

again picking up with the more open situation. 

Requests for Support/Service Provision/Carers: 

 
 

 Decline in the number of requests for support following the first national lockdown in 

March (rolling 12m figure reported at the end of each quarter); numbers increasing 

from April-June 2021. 

 Number of people in receipt of LT services remains quite steady. 

 Along with reduction in RFS, the number of carers receiving support has also declined 

since March 2020.  Numbers are picking back up with more carers going on to receive 

a carer assessment in the first quarter of 2021/22. 

Page 22



6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
 
 

Hospital and Health Based Teams 

Hospital based pressures meant that initially increased working hours in ASC were necessary 

to ensure flow, alternatives to admission and avoiding delays to discharge were addressed. A 

number of staff now work as part of their contract over weekends to help deliver this, based 

within the Single Point of Discharge, which is developing into the Transfer of Care Hub. The 

Hub will bring all those staff together, both Local Authority and NHS, who work to support 

the hospital in ensuring there is a timely discharge and preventing unnecessary admissions. 

Adult Social Care staff from the Hospital Discharge Team and the A&E team will also be part 

of this larger team. 

The arrangements described in September remain largely in place, although the biggest 

single change is the bringing together of some of the staff in the teams described above into 

the Hub, albeit to some extent virtually due to ongoing covid safe workplace arrangements.. 

The restrictions on hospital/ward based activities together with the lack of socially distant 

space in community health settings means we continue to need to accommodate more of 

these staff in Bickerstaffe House, together with using home based working arrangements. 

Some of the operational changes have moved what were normally health based assessment 

activities into community settings. There has been a backlog of some assessments in relation 

to Decision Support Tool completion, (as part of assessing for continuing health care), which 

are now being addressed. 

We are well into the preparation for winter with our NHS colleagues, amidst the well-

publicised trepidation about how winter will be managed with the anticipated pressures. The 

extension of the D2A funding until the end of March 2022 will be helpful in continuing flow 

from hospital using the systems now set in place.   

Adult and Older Adult Mental Health Teams  

Due to a lack of a Covid secure risk assessment we had moved staff from their normal office 

base in the Gateway in to Bickerstaffe House, but these staff have now returned to that office 

base. Pressures in mental health services remain extremely high in both adult and older adult 

services, with significant increases in referrals as well as regular delays in admission for 

people liable to be detained due to bed unavailability.   

We are working with LSCFT and other Local Authority partners in the transformation projects 

although these are at very early stages of development and there is as yet no “blueprint”.   

Integrated Learning Disability Team 

The team has had to provide a greater level of support to those service users and their 

families affected by the closure of day services and limited respite services, including 

commissioning alternatives, such as 1-1 support to people in their own homes. Staff have 

been in the office, on their rota, from the start of the pandemic.  

Page 23



 
 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Going forward the numbers of people with a learning disability and/or ASD continues to 

grow. Although relatively small in number, young people coming through transitions needing 

a supported living placement are growing and this is evidenced in the budgetary impact this 

leads to. 

Adult Social Care Initial Contact Team and North and South Teams  

As reported in March, the three teams have effectively had to operate more as one team due 

to the logistical issues arising from home working, shielding and demand. Despite this they 

managed to ensure that work flow continued without the need to resort to queues in 

allocation, continuing to visit people in their homes and in the community where necessary. 

With the recent reduction in restrictions they have now been able to revert to their normal 

ways of working and return to “business as usual”. 

Business Support Team 

Similarly, this team, comprising of the Social Care Purchasing Unit, Quality Assurance, Direct 

Payments and Personal Health Budgets, have maintained a constant presence in Bickerstaffe. 

They continue to deliver all their normal services alongside overseeing the PPE in house 

support, and to personal assistants. Coordinating incoming and outgoing post, this extends 

beyond the service to include other teams who would usually occupy the 4th floor, in their 

absence. 

The team still manage the additional financial support care providers are offered to support 

the CV19 challenges they face, making all payments on time. They also record and track every 

placement and care package made that is CV19 related to ensure accurate invoices can be 

submitted to the CCG. 

Performance level against other North West Authorities 

The table reproduced below comes from the quarterly ADASS publication examining our 

performance against other NW Authorities. It provides a useful overview of where we are in 

relation to other Authorities, in respect of many of the service areas described above, and 

supports the descriptions and details set out in those paragraphs.     

Page 24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
6.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.12 
 

 

     

Adult Care and Support (Provider Services) 

The council’s Care and Support (Provider Services) that are regulated by CQC have 

maintained a GOOD rating. This achievement is testament to the continued dedication and 

commitment of our workforce in delivering exceptional care to vulnerable people of 

Blackpool in what has been very difficult and challenging times. 

The Provider Services that have maintained a CQC Rating of GOOD include: 

 ARC Residential Intermediate Care Service  

 Homecare and Reablement Service 

 Extra Support (Supported Living) 

 Shared Lives Service 

 Coopers @ Devonshire respite and Short Breaks Service 

 The Phoenix Mental Health Crisis Service 

All of the council’s Provider Services have now reopened, although in some areas the delivery 

of the service is different to what it was prior to the Pandemic. Obvious impacts around 

infection prevention and control as well as ensuring service environments have been covid 

secure, have all resulted in services needing to adapt and work very differently over the last 

18 months. Learning has been taken forward and in some areas the changes to ways of 

working have now become embedded in to day to day delivery. 

Key developments and changes include:  

 ARC – Residential Intermediate Care (Assessment and Rehabilitation) Service 

Page 25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The ARC has continued to adapt to the ever changing covid pandemic to ensure people 

receive the right care in the right place at the right time. ARC has provided a flexible bed 

based service for people with a Covid Positive status being discharged from Hospital and a 

‘step up’ from the community when a Covid Positive status has placed carer arrangements at 

risk. 

As a council we have continued to support the whole health and social care system through 

the provision of ARC and made available a Designated Setting provision to Lancashire County 

Council for Covid Positive residents being discharged from Hospital. This has been a Fylde 

Coast response to unprecedented times and this provision continues at this time. 

ARC is also making a significant contribution to supporting flow across the whole system. As 

patient numbers increase in Hospital this results in a higher number of discharges where 

social care is required. In a climate that is challenging in terms of recruitment to the social 

care workforce, added to the impacts of covid, then there are obvious delays to packages of 

care commencing to support hospital discharges. ARC is stepping in to assist with making 

available short term care provision as bridging care until a package of care becomes available. 

This approach is ensuring people do not need to remain in a Hospital bed any longer than 

they need to and therefore reducing the associated risks of further medical complications 

and/or infection transmission. 

Homecare and Reablement Service 

The Homecare and Reablement Service continue to support the different models of care that 

prevent admissions to hospital and also support timely discharges from Hospital. There has 

been a considerable increase in hospital discharge activity in the last 9 months. The service 

has observed that people are frailer and have higher care and support needs than what 

would have typically been observed prior to and during the early phase of the Pandemic. 

People are requiring more regular care and for longer periods of time, all of which has 

resulted in an overall increase in the need for packages of care. 

The Homecare and Reablement Service is not immune to the additional demand for social 

care and have experienced similar operational challenges to other providers. This has in part 

been compounded by new ways of working in terms of discharge planning and the 

introduction of Discharge To Asses (D2A) and people being assessed more at home than in 

Hospital and the changes to care delivery as a result. This has been made more difficult by 

the challenges around recruitment to social care roles across all sectors, at time where there 

is more demand for social care and reduced capacity to meet demand. The council’s 

Homecare and Reablement Service is at the forefront of trying to respond to the current 

challenges through the development of innovative roles (Trusted Assessors) and an 

aspiration to move to a position whereby all D2A Hospital Discharges are supported by the 

Homecare and Reablement Service for up to 4 weeks to enable a full assessment to take 

place before any future care is transferred to another provider. This ensures continuity for 

Page 26



 
 
 
 

6.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
6.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the person in receipt of care but also ensures a level of stability for any provider who is 

picking up the ongoing package of care as the assessments will be completed and the 

likelihood of any significant changes to the care is reduced. 

Coopers @ Devonshire and Coopers @ Ambleside Respite and Short Breaks Service 

The development of a new purpose built 6 bedded residential service for learning disabled 

adults and/or autism has continued throughout the Pandemic. There has been a delay to the 

opening of the service due to some of the building materials not being available. But the 

service is planning to launch by the end of November 2021.  

Consultation with service users, carers and families has been instrumental in the design, look 

and feel of the service, including the rebranding of the service going forwards. There will be 

two settings delivering respite and short breaks (1) Coopers at Devonshire (2) Coopers @ 

Ambleside, each setting delivering bespoke provision meeting a range of different needs. 

Langdale and Keats Day Services 

These two services have been impacted by the Pandemic and had to close for a period of 

several months. They have had to plan for reopening and closing on a couple of occasions in 

response to National Lockdowns. This presented a number of challenges as the people who 

would have ordinarily used the day service continued to need care and support. Both 

Langdale and Keats day Services responded to this need and provided an ‘outreach’ offer to 

those in greatest need and who did not have other caring arrangements in place. This offer 

was expanded and the Langdale Volunteers also delivered food parcels and planted tubs to 

services users and their families as way of keeping in touch and offering support during times 

of significant isolation during the Pandemic. 

Both Langdale and Keats Day Services are now fully operational once again. Including the 

Anchorsholme and Carlton Nibble Cafés. There is some building work underway at Blackpool 

Centre for Independent Living (BCIL) and as soon as this is completed then the Nibbles @ 

BCIL Café will be reopening. 

Provider Peer Support and Resilience Team 

As we continue to experience the impacts of the Pandemic, the Provider HUB has adapted its 

support to social care providers. The Provider HUB is starting to move into supporting 

providers with hands on practical peer assistance in the management and support of care 

delivery. The approach is from a position of peer support, getting alongside the provider and 

supporting them with the improvements and changes that may be required. Whether this be 

in response to a CQC Inspection or National Guidance and Policy changes. The Provider HUB 

can offer some provider expertise and an operational perspective to problem solving. This is 

a key support function of the council and something that has been taken from the learning 

during the Pandemic and is now part of the Adult Provider Services normal business. 

Page 27



6.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employee Support 

Adult Provider Services is currently supporting 35 Adult Apprentices to complete their formal 

qualification in social care. These include introductory social care level 2 as well as level 7 

qualifications in management and leadership. Working closely with Blackpool and Fylde 

College and colleagues and the council’s workforce development team, this is the second 

cohort to commence their qualification. This investment is ensuring we have a highly trained 

a skilled workforce across social care that is equipped to take us forward into the future.  

Recruitment is a significant challenge for all providers of social care and the council’s Adult 

Provider Services is not immune to these challenges. The services are supporting a 

recruitment campaign for social care and also to the specific roles within Adult Provider 

Services. Our Provider HUB is operating an ‘application support’ option for all applicants, this 

is where the applicant expresses an interest in social care and the Provider HUB team make 

contact and explore how best they may match to any vacancies within the council and/or 

other providers in the market. Support is then offered to help complete the application form 

and to prepare the applicant for interview. There have been three successful appointments 

to posts over the last couple of months as a direct result of this new initiative. 

Blackpool Adult Social Care Autism Team 

Blackpool Council has for many years been aware of the gap in services for people with 

Autism. Referrals were often slotted into the best team to meet their needs, this often being 

either mental health services or learning disability services. Whilst these teams were able to 

meet the basic needs of people with Autism it was accepted that the creation of a specialist 

Autism Team was required and the decision was made to fully fund this from the Social Care 

budget. 

Blackpool Adult Social Care Autism Team has been in existence since April 2019 initially with 

staffing comprising of one qualified full time social worker and two full time support workers. 

The criteria for acceptance into this service is that the individual either has a diagnosis of 

Autism or if following an assessment there appears to be a presentation of Autism, in the 

latter case the Autism Team will support the individual through the diagnosis process. There 

is also a requirement that the person’s difficulties are impacting on the persons wellbeing 

rendering them unable to achieve two or more domains of the Care Act 2014. 

Within a very short period of the team operating they became full with a need for other 

services to hold individuals until capacity could be released. This is partly due to the complex 

work undertaken which can take a number of months and also that there is currently no 

access to input from health colleagues in providing services including, Consultant Psychiatrist, 

Psychology, Occupational Therapy and Nursing. Clients from this team have been subject to 

statutory Mental Health Act Assessments and experienced formal admissions, these may 

have been avoided if the team had access to health professionals.  

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
6.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
6.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
6.21 
 
 
 

In June the decision was made to invest in the Autism Team and one Deputy Team Manager, 

two qualified social workers and two support Workers were added to the team making the 

team: 

One Deputy Team Manager. 

Three qualified Social Workers  

Four support Workers. 

Since April 2019 the team has supported 184 individuals with varying difficulties and length in 

service, 22 now are supported by commissioned services, this would not have been possible 

without the prior input from the Autism Team.  

Next Steps 

Some of our referrals have come from our colleagues in Children’s Services. These are often 

complex young people and it is essential that the transition pathway is fit for purpose. We 

would like to mirror the Transition process that is undertaken in the Learning Disability Team, 

to that end we feel that a Transition Social Worker should be considered as the team 

progresses. 

We have just started to work alongside colleagues in Blackpool Teaching Hospitals who 

deliver the Autism Diagnostic Service. Our aim in to offer a co-located service to ensure that 

once a diagnosis is received there is the support available. Once the person has come to 

terms with their diagnosis a Care Act assessment will be undertaken and a plan made with 

the person to help them to achieve their desired goals. 

Autism Partnership Board 

Blackpool’s DASS has been invited to co-chair the newly-created ICS-wide Autism Board that 

will oversee the strategic transformation of services for people with Autism in accordance 

with the National Autism Strategy.  

Locally, we have identified the value that we can get from a place-based Autism Partnership 

Board, building on the success of our well-established Learning Disability Partnership Board. 

There is work underway to bring together a group of interested people to begin the 

exploration of what we want this to look like, what we want to cover, and what our 

geographical area will be. We are committed to fully including people who are neurodiverse 

and not just hearing the voice of the people who work with them or support them, formally 

or informally.  

Care Homes and Domiciliary Care Covid Vaccination 
 
Vaccination in care homes and domiciliary care remain significantly above national rates, 
following a concerted and sustained effort by external providers, NHS colleagues and our 

Page 29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

internal teams in Provider Services, Public Health and the Quality Monitoring Team. There is 
some movement in both residents and staff turnover, which can reduce the rates a little if 
unvaccinated people join the home or care provider.  
 
Mandatory vaccination comes in for staff and anyone entering a care home for work reasons 
from November 2021 and all employers affected (including the Council and NHS services) are 
working through with their staff how to ensure that these requirements are implemented. 
For those who resolutely refuse to be vaccinated, but are not exempt, these will need to be 
individual HR discussions. In larger employment settings, there may be suitable alternative 
work as an alternative to dismissal due to being unable to meet mandatory requirements. All 
new staff will have mandatory vaccination as a condition of employment. This is an extremely 
difficult and sensitive time for all concerned, and we have been fortunate that the efforts of 
everyone concerned have delivered such high vaccination rates. This has included supportive 
conversations privately with individuals by trained nurses, understanding and offering 
additional information and evidence in relation to areas of concern.  
 
Vaccine position as at 12 September 2021 (figures published 16 September 2021)  
 
Older Adults Care Homes:  

 Residents first dose – 100% 

 Residents second dose – 99.8% 

 Staff first dose – 98.4%  

 Staff second dose – 93.8%  
 

Care at Home (domiciliary care): 

 Staff first dose - 92.1% 

 Staff second dose  - 87.3%  
 
These are the best vaccination rates in the land, the result of a great deal of dedicated focus 
on the detail, and hard work by providers with their staff and NHS vaccinators, supported by 
Public Health, the Quality Monitoring Team, and the Provider Support Hub. Collaborative 
working has enabled us to understand both operational problems and reasons for hesitancy, 
and have informed conversations and written briefings to help us overcome them.  
 
The latest Covid-19 position in Blackpool Care Homes is one of relative stability and low levels 
of infection, unctuated by an occasional larger outbreak, often pinpointed to a particular 
event. As at 27/09/2021, relating to notifications that Blackpool Public Health have received. 
 

The current position as we are aware in Residential Care and Nursing Homes is: 
o 2(↓4) lab-confirmed outbreak (two or more resident or staff cases within 14 

days in a home)* 
o 2(↓3) lab-confirmed single resident or staff cases in a home** 

 

Page 30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.23 
 
 
 
 
 

 20(↓48 ) individual people involved within the last 14 days (had a positive test 
or symptoms onset since 13/09/2021) 

 35% (56%) (n=7 staff) (↓31) / 65% (44%) (n= 13 residents) (↓17) 
 75% (98%) (n=15) (↓52) asymptomatic 
 25% (2%) (n=5) (↑4 ) symptomatic            

 
 

Since 01/04/2021 Blackpool Public Health have received notification of: 

 80 (↑3) incidents of single cases or outbreaks in care homes 
 
There were no single cases or outbreaks in Supported Living in this period. There were 
2 people in the ARC Designated Covid recovery beds.  

 
 
Budget/Finance 

 

2020/21 

There were savings within the Directorate in 2020/21 despite significant pressures due to 

Covid-19. Additional expenditure amounted to £15.9m, the main reasons were a 10% fee 

uplift to care providers (£4.5m), PPE provision (£1.7m) and additional hospital discharges 

(£2.3m). The measures relating to Covid-19 were funded by a combination of Government 

grants and Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) recharges. Activity was also impacted by 

Covid-19 resulting in a reduction in the number of packages within residential and day care 

settings and this was the main reason for the under spend. 

 

2021/22 

Adult Services have incurred significant costs in relation to Covid-19 in 2021/22 of £5.2m.  

Providers have been supported through a number of schemes including the Emergency 

Workforce provision, a 10% Covid-19 premium applied to fee rates and access to free 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE).  There have been increased Covid-19 related hospital 

discharges with these costs being reclaimed from Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group.  

Direct Service grants have also been allocated to providers in relation to Infection Prevention 

Control and Lateral Flow Testing.  Adult Services is currently forecasting a net overspend of 

£2.5m at month 3, however, the council has received a £5.5m government grant for Covid-19 

in 21/22 which will partially offset this pressure when allocated out to services. 

 

Fee Rates 

A significant amount of information on the scale and nature of the additional covid-related 

costs incurred by social care providers has been collected throughout the course of the 

pandemic. Providers have been asked to submit monthly reports detailing the additional 

costs which have been incurred as a result of the introduction of infection control measures.  

Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This data has been summarised and sent on a regular basis to the Department of Health and 

Social Care (DHSC) to help inform decision making in relation to the Infection Control and 

Testing Fund.  

The latest set of figures submitted by providers in relation to infection control costs incurred 

in the month of July can be found in the table which follows. Please note that the data is 

based on submissions by 57 care homes (out of a possible 66) and 17 community care 

providers (out of a possible 22) reporting on costs incurred in July 2021. The figures in the 

table not include costs associated with avoiding the use of public transport, the cost of 

additional cleaning and laundry materials, the cost of additional uniforms, the increased cost 

of insurance premiums, etc. as these costs do not fall within the remit of the Infection 

Control and Testing Fund. 

 

Infection Control Measure Amount 

£’000s 

 

 

% 

Residential Care Providers  

 

  

Ensuring staff who are isolating in line with 

Government guidance receive their normal wages 

 

35 24 % 

Limiting all staff movement between settings unless 

absolutely necessary, to help reduce the spread of 

infection 

 

30 21% 

Limiting or cohorting staff to individual groups of 

residents or floors/wings, including segregation of 

COVID-19 positive residents 

 

38 27% 

Page 32



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supporting active recruitment of additional staff if 

needed to enable staff to work in only one Care Home 

or to work only with an assigned group of residents or 

only in specified areas of a Care Home 

 

38 27% 

Costs of vaccination 

 

1 1% 

SUB TOTAL  

 

142 100% 

Paying for staff costs associated with training and 

carrying out LFD testing 

 

54 32% 

Supporting safe visiting in care homes 

 

35 21% 

Costs associated with recruiting staff to facilitate 

increased testing 

 

17 10% 

Costs associated with the creation and maintenance of 

a separate testing area where staff and visitors can be 

tested and wait for their result 

 

31 19% 

Costs associated with disposal of LFD tests and testing 

equipment 

 

6 4% 

Costs of PCR testing 

 

24 14% 

 

SUB TOTAL  

 

167 100% 

Page 33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Care Providers 

 

  

Ensuring staff who are isolating in line with 

government guidance receive their normal wages 

while doing so 

 

16 64% 

Steps to limit the number of different people from a 

home care provider providing care to a particular 

individual or steps to enable staff to perform the 

duties of other team members/providers to reduce the 

number of carers attending a particular individual 

 

2 9% 

Meeting additional costs associated with restricting 

workforce movement for infection control purposes 

 

6 24% 

Costs of vaccination 1 3% 

 

SUB TOTAL  

 

25 100% 

 

At the time of writing the Infection Control and Testing Fund is due to end on 30th September 

and supplies of PPE will no longer be available through the government’s portal after 31 

March 2022. However, many of the costs listed above will need to continue if the spread of 

infection is to be controlled. 

The renewal of insurance cover needs to be highlighted as a particular difficulty faced by 

many care providers. A number of insurance agencies are no longer willing to provide cover 

for care providers. Where insurers are willing to provide cover this has come at a significant 

increased cost and with the removal of any cover for covid-related liabilities.  

According to a North West Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) report 

published in February 2021 the average increase in insurance premium from March 2020 was 

68%, or £24,032. The following table breaks down these increases by support setting, number 

of records, the average % increase, and average cost increase. 

Page 34



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Support Setting No. Records Average % Average £

Overall 77 68% £24,032.42

Domiciliary Care 16 80% £2,362.51

Care Home - Residential (younger adults) 1 20% £1,656.00

Care Home - Residential (65+) 37 46% £28,808.81

Care Home - Nursing (younger adults) 0 - -

Care Home - Nursing (65+) 10 64% £62,418.75

Supported Living 1 56% £7,116.00

Other (please specify) 12 130% £9,484.24

Insurance Increases

 

Care home 65+ nursing care providers have seen the highest average financial increase at 

£62,418.75. Despite these increases in insurance costs, the following issues were raised by 

providers: 

- There was no COVID-19 cover in their new policies.  

-   The highest price would impact on the providers ability to pay more than the           

national living wage / hourly wages. 

- There are fewer residents but higher financial costs.  

- Limited insurers in the market – limited choice for the providers. 

 

One provider in Blackpool reported the following increases in insurance premiums in the past 

year: 

Setting  Beds  Insurance 
Cost Pre 
March 2020 

Insurance 
Renewal 
Cost 

Renewal 
Cost 
Difference 

% 
increase 

Care Home 
- Nursing 

 40 £5,054.00 £24,123.6
0 

£19,069.6
0 

377% 

Care Home 
- Nursing 

 35 £4,422.25 £21,108.1
5 

£16,685.9
0 

377% 

Care Home 
- Nursing 

 31 £3,942.89 £16,361.6
0 

£12,418.7
1 

315% 

Care Home 
- Nursing 

 25 
 

£3,179.75 £13,194.7
5 

£10,015.0
0 

315% 

 

Other cost pressures include increases in the prices of goods and services such as the cost of 

PPE and expected increases in the National Living Wage.  There will be also an increase of 

1.25% in the rate of national insurance payable by employers from April 2022, as announced 

by the government as part of its plan to introduce a Health and Social Care levy. 

The high turnover of staff in the sector and the challenges associated with recruitment and 

retention have been long standing issues but these difficulties have now been exacerbated by 

the pandemic with staff needing to isolate or leaving their jobs to work in higher paid roles. 

Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This means increased staffing costs as providers try to cover rotas with agency staff or recruit 

new starters (requiring training, DBS checks, etc.)  

The Council has in recent years used cost of care models to help determine an appropriate 

fee rate for care at home services and residential care. These models will be used as a 

starting point to quantify the financial impact of the various factors which will need to be 

taken into account when setting fee rates for 20222/23 including: 

• The anticipated increase in the National Living Wage 

• The increase in insurance premiums and the cost of other goods and services 

• The increase in the employer’s rate of national insurance of 1.25% 

• The continuing costs of infection control and routine testing 

 

Provider Finances 

A number of financial support arrangements were established at the start of the pandemic to 

help ensure the continuing financial viability of social care providers. These arrangements 

included: 

 A 10% increase in the usual fee rate to help cover additional costs associated with 

Covid-19. This came at a cost of £6.2m during the period 1 April 2020 to 18th July 2021 

and was funded by the central government grant designed to help local authorities 

with general covid related pressures. This covid related funding from government to 

local authorities came to end on 30 June 2021. 

 A baseline or minimum guaranteed payment scheme was in operation from April 

2020 to December 2020 at a total cost of £1.1m. The Council guaranteed a regular 

level of income at pre-covid rates in the event that providers experienced reductions 

in the level of activity as a result of the pandemic, thus adversely affecting cash-flow.  

 Additional supplies of PPE, at nil cost if required. Note the arrangements for supplies 

through the national portal end in March 2022. 

 Infection Control and Testing grants of over £7m have been received from central 

government and allocated to social care providers to specifically help reduce the 

spread of infection. Providers can use the funds to help with the additional costs 

associated with limiting staff movement, ensuring staff receive full pay when isolating, 

administering PCR and lateral flow testing, facilitating safe visiting etc. This funding 

has been awarded in a number of tranches, with the current allocation to be spent by 

30th September. At the time of writing no further specific infection control and testing 

grants have been announced. 

 Additional discretionary funding continues to be available in the event of significant 

covid-related cost pressures which pose a risk to financial viability and which 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

providers cannot manage using the existing funding sources.  To date £236k has been 

allocated to providers who have demonstrated unsustainable additional cost 

pressures which have arisen as a consequence of covid and the urgent need to control 

the spread of the infection. 

 The Emergency Workforce at a cost of £630k (to date) continues to respond to urgent 

situations within care homes where staffing shortages pose a risk to safe working 

practices. 

The pandemic and the associated additional costs have placed huge strains on the financial 

resilience of many providers. In addition to a wide range of extra costs arising from the need 

to control the spread of infection, many residential care providers have experienced lower 

rates of occupancy as people have been deterred from placing loved ones in residential 

settings by the perceived risks of infection and the suspension of visiting arrangements. 

There are signs that occupancy levels in care homes are starting to recover, however, the 

financial viability of providers continues to be closely monitored. 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Work has now begun on updating the Department’s Medium Term Financial Strategy as part 

of a wider exercise to refresh the Council’s overall financial plans for the next six years. Work 

is well under way with Accountancy and Adults Senior Management Team to understand the 

current levels of activity and to model future demand. The impact of earlier hospital 

discharges and clients needing higher packages of care will be a cost pressure in future years 

that will need addressing. Added to this will be the requirement to increase provider fees in 

line with National Living Wage rises along with considering the financial implication of the 

recently announced Health & Social Care Levy. This work will dovetail with the current 

refresh of the council’s Medium Term Financial Sustainability Strategy. 

The announcement of extra funding for the health and social care sector, as part of the 

government’s Build Back Better plan, to increase capacity in the NHS and reform adult social 

care is welcome but lacking in detail at this stage. The government has stated that the adult 

social care council tax precept and local authority efficiencies will continue to help fund 

demographic pressures and cost price increases.  

Demographic pressures or changes in the volume of activity due to demand are evident in 

the system. These pressures include - 

 An increase in the number of adults with a learning disability and/or autism receiving 

a package of care as a result of a breakdown in informal care arrangements and new 

service users transitioning from children’s services. The increase in 2021/22 is 

approximately 1,000 extra care hours required per week at a cost of £16,400 or 

£852,800 per annum. Next year we expect a further 3 adults will require a package of 

care with accommodation and possibly 19 adults will require some level of support. 

Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This is expected to cost in the region of an additional £650,000 per annum. (A typical 

residential care package costs approximately £40k per annum, a supported living 

package £72k per annum based on a 3 person household and a care at home package 

say £23k per annum). 

 An increase in the average size of a care at home package for older adults and those 

adults with physical disabilities or mental health issues from 9.5 hours or £141 per 

week (£7.3k per annum) in 2019/20 to 11.5 hours or £183 per week (£9.5k per 

annum) in 2021/22 as people experience more complex health issues. Approximately 

65% of people are able to make a contribution towards the cost of their care but only 

a small proportion (15%) can cover the full cost. 

 The requirement for more short term support both at home and in residential care as 

people are discharged from hospital within very short timescales. 

 

It is expected that the backlog in elective surgery, currently a major challenge for the NHS, 

will have long term implications for social care as people awaiting operations for hip and 

knee replacements, etc. experience a deterioration in their physical and mental health 

requiring more support with personal care needs and social isolation. There is also an 

increased risk of falls as people lose the ability to manoeuvre and complete basic daily living 

tasks. The impact of speedier hospital discharges and an emphasis on avoiding admission to 

hospital will also require a significant level of input from social care. Without additional 

resources it is likely that the system will experience delays, backlogs and shortages.  

 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 
 

  
7.0  List of Appendices: 

 
7.1  None 

 
8.0  Financial considerations: 

 
8.1  Contained within the report. 

 
9.0  Legal considerations: 

 
9.1  Contained within the report. 

 
10.0  Risk management considerations: 

 
10.1  None. 

Page 38



 
11.0  Equalities considerations: 

 
11.1  None. 

 
12.0  Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations: 

 
12.1  None. 

 
13.0  Internal/external consultation undertaken: 

 
13.1  None. 

 
14.0  Background papers: 

 
14.1  None. 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Arif Rapura, Director of Public Health 

Date of Meeting: 14 October 2021 

 

RECOVERY OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES AND COVID 
 

1.0  
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1  
 

At previous a Scrutiny Committee a request was made for a report on the recovery of public 
health commissioned services from COVID measures. This report aims to summarise the 
impact of COVID and recovery for each of the main public health services. 
 

2.0  Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1  To consider the report on recovery plans and progress. 
 

3.0  Reasons for recommendation(s): 
 

3.1  
 

N/A 
 

3.2  Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the 
Council? 
 

No 

3.3  Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 

Yes 

4.0  Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

4.1  None. 
 

5.0  Council priority: 
 

 The relevant Council priority is  

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience. 
 

 

6.0  Background information 
 

6.1  Members requested that an overview of the impact of the pandemic and service recovery 
be provided. Full detail is provided within the appendix to the report. 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 
 

7.0  List of Appendices: 
 

7.1  Appendix 7(a): Recovery of Public Health Services and COVID 
 

8.0  Financial considerations: 
 

8.1  During COVID restrictions the majority of services were paid on a block basis irrespective of 
service activity with the aim of maintaining stability of organisations. Guidance on what 
elements of service should continue was provided by the department of Health and 
Professional Faculties. Services paid on tariff rather than block are returning to normal 
payment from October 2021 to March 2022 dependent on the agreed recovery plan. 
 

9.0  Legal considerations: 
 

9.1  Mandated services have been maintained during the pandemic in line with guidance from 
professional bodies. 
 

10.0  Risk management considerations  
 

10.1 Risks including dealing with the backlog of patient need have been taken into consideration 
in developing the recovery plans. 
 

11.0  Equalities considerations: 
 

11.1  Equality analysis and considerations have been built into the recovery plans 
 

12.0  Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations: 
 

12.1  Plans aim to continue the benefits from some digital consultation and testing measures to 
reduce the requirement for patient and staff travel. Whilst retaining patient choice and 
recognising the benefits In face to face consultation for issues such as safeguarding. 
 

13.0  Internal/external consultation undertaken: 
 

13.1  Consultation with service providers and through patients to determine the content of 
recovery plans 
 

14.0  Background papers: 
 

14.1  None. 
 

 

Page 42



Appendix 7(a) 

   

Public Health Update 
Recovery of Public Health Services and COVID 

 
 

1.0 Background 
 

At previous Scrutiny Committee a request was made for a report on the recovery of public health 
commissioned services from COVID measures. This report aims to summarise the impact of COVID 
and recovery for each of the main public health services. 

 
2.0 Service Impact during COVID Restrictions and Recovery Plan 
 

The following summarises the position in relation to services commissioned from the Department 
of Health Public Health ring fenced grant. 
 
2.1 Sexual Health 

 
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on both the delivery of, and access to, 
sexual and reproductive health services at a local, regional and national level, with some staff 
redeployed to the frontline COVID-19 response. 

 
Blackpool sexual health services have followed the Faculty of Sexual Reproductive Health 
(FSRH) guidance on delivery of essential SRH services that continued over the pandemic. 
Although disruption to delivery and uptake of services to support sexual and reproductive 
health, a flexible approach and partnership working between commissioners and service 
providers has meant that services have continued to be delivered, including to our most 
vulnerable residents.  
 
All patients contacting the service had a telephone triage by a sexual health clinician and 
assessed whether suitable for remote access to services, or an urgent face-to-face 
appointment.   The digital offer for home STI testing kits which had been piloted pre 
pandemic was a major element of the service response during COVID measures. In addition 
oral contraception was facilitated through telephone or digital triage with the patient not 
having to attend clinic. Long Acting Reversible Contraception has not been available initially 
and many clients moved to self-administration of syana press. 
 
Providers have worked with commissioners to look at inequalities in take up of services 
during the COVID measures and on a recovery plan for restoration of services.  Connect 
Young people service was closed for a period, opening for collection of medications only.  All 
drop in sessions ceased during the pandemic, however these have now resumed at Connect 
Young People’s service. 
 
Many aspects of the changes to service provision throughout the pandemic have improved 
choice and widened access to services.  In addition, there have been exciting innovations 
made in sexual health provision over the past year, including expansion of the digital offer 
for on-line STI tests and e-contraception which has continued. Service activity has now 
returned to pre pandemic levels. 
 
Reasons for inequalities in service access and impact on outcomes during 20/21 continue to 
be explored. 

 

Page 43



Appendix 7(a) 

   

2.2 Health Visiting 
 

The Health Visiting Service continued to be delivered during the pandemic, however, the 
service moved to a virtual offer, with three face to face visits continuing within the first 8 
weeks.  The Health Visiting service prioritised safeguarding work, have been undertaking the 
appropriate assessments, and attended the multi-agency meetings, core groups and 
safeguarding conferences via video conferencing platforms.  The baby steps programme is 
moving to group work on a virtual basis, but families who don’t have the technology will 
continue to receive one to one support.  As restrictions were lifted the Health Visiting service 
moved back to delivering more face to face provision and by December 2020 all visits were 
undertaken on a face to face basis.  Baby clinics were reintroduced on an appointment basis 
and been operated from the 3 Primary Care Centres.  These are still operating from these 
centres, but the plan is to return these to the Family Hubs once these are back in full 
operation.  At the present time the Health Visiting service is experiencing pressures on 
service delivery due to the impact of COVID, sickness absence, vacancies and difficulties with 
recruiting qualified staff.  It has been agreed between the Commissioners and Providers that 
the Health visiting model would be adapted as follows:- 
  
Ante-natal – Face to face 
Newborn– Face to face 
3 – 5 week   - virtual unless risk assessed otherwise 
6 – 8 week– Face to face 
3 – 4 month    - virtual unless risk assessed otherwise    
9 – 12 months– Face to face 
18 month desk top review  - temporarily stopped 
2 – 2.5 year– Face to face 
3 – 3.5 year– Face to face 
 
This is a temporary arrangement which has been agreed between the commissioners and 
providers and is anticipated to operate for 4-6 months.  In addition to this the service is 
appointing a number of Band 5s in order to manage the caseload flexibly and to offer 
workload mix.  It is anticipated by recruiting to these posts that the service can grow their 
own health visitors and encourage individuals to go for their training. The position is being 
reviewed regularly and changes will be implemented as soon as the staffing arrangements 
improve.   
 
It is worth noting that the fall in Health Visitor numbers, high caseloads and impact of COVID 
is an issue across the Country and we are awaiting a report “The State of HV in England”, 
which can be shared once published. 

 
2.3 Family Nurse Partnership 

 
The FNP service has continued to work on a virtual basis with staff utilising the Attend 
Anywhere App which enables the nurses to see the families and babies.  Home/face to face 
contacts took place for those individuals that required them such as antenatal and new birth 
visits, safeguarding and concerns about perinatal mental health.  The recruitment rate onto 
the programme remained high at 93% throughout the pandemic.  The service has moved 
back to face to face provision and continues to have good engagement.  

  

Page 44



Appendix 7(a) 

   

2.4 School Nursing 
 

The School Nursing service continued to operate during the pandemic on a virtual basis and 
continued with regular contact with the schools, families and young people. They continue 
to provide support around issues such as emotional health and behaviour issues and 
continue to participate in Safeguarding meetings held via skype which is organised by Social 
Care.  LAC assessments have continued and are still completed over the telephone. At the 
start of the Autumn Term 2020 the School Nursing Services provided a dedicated telephone 
line, to support schools with advice for children returning to school during COVID-19. The 
service is now operating back in Schools, however, due to the pressures on the service and 
in light of the recent service review, changes are currently being made to the service delivery. 
 
The School Nursing Service were still able to deliver the NCMP programme.  The national 
advice was that they were only required to weigh and measure children from 10% of schools, 
however, as Commissioners of the service and in discussion with the provider we agreed that 
all schools should be involved in the programme.  There was only one school that opted out 
of the programme and the rest all took part with a 94% return rate for the data.  This was 
excellent work from the School Nursing service under difficult conditions with the COVID 
restrictions in place.   
 
A review of school nursing services has been undertaken. The recommendations are 
currently being implemented or under consideration if other organisations are involved. 

 
2.5 Smoking cessation Services 

 
England saw a rise in young adults taking up smoking during the first lockdown, and the 
number of 18 to 34-year-olds who classed themselves as smokers increased by a quarter, 
from 21.5% to 26.8%, says Cancer Research UK.  In response to this we are rewriting and 
promoting PSHE lessons around smoking which will be launched to PSHE leads at the October 
PSHE Forum in Blackpool.  The findings, published in the journal Addiction, come 
from monthly surveys, each involving hundreds of people, about tobacco and alcohol use. 
Based on population estimates for England, the findings suggest an extra 652,000 young 
adults were smoking, compared with before the pandemic, say researchers. The data also 
suggests the pandemic may have been a trigger for many smokers, including young adults, 
to think about attempting to quit tobacco. There were increases in the number of existing 
smokers quitting successfully, and overall levels of smoking in adults remain stable, according 
to the figures. This could be as a result of the increase in young people smoking or historic 
smokers relapsing 
 
New Community Stop Smoking Service began January 2020 and have begun working with 
primary care and GPs .A new campaign was also created and is being promoted.  Lung checks 
and SSS working well together utilising referral pathway, the same planned for SMI health 
checks.  The new service is starting to provide Alcohol Brief Advice and are focusing on 
Cannabis and Tobacco use.  F2F and CO monitoring resumed at Moor Park surgery in 
September 21.  Testing out new COVID secure ways of working then hopefully roll out across 
Blackpool.  Stop Smoking Helpline throughout COVID and ongoing with delivery of NRT when 
needed along with the ‘My Quit Route’ app used throughout COVID and ongoing 
 
Since the new service was set up in January 2021:Quarter 4 (Jan/Feb/Mar 2021) – 64 set a 
quit date and 41 successful quits Quarter 1 (April/May/June 2021) – 84 set a quit date and 
46 successful quits. 

Page 45



Appendix 7(a) 

   

 
The ‘My Quit Route App’ was started in October 2019 and use has been steady through 
COVID.  345 downloaded App, 309 treated smokers and 23 self-reported quitters (consider 
here than many people will not return to App just to record success) 
 
There has been a steady increase in uptake of smoking cessation services in 21/22 and in 
successful quits. The promotion of the new service is going well and the full staffing team is 
in place. Recovery plan is hybrid approach to appointments and being proactive in hard to 
reach communities.  Adherence to all guidance and best practice regarding COVID and Co 
testing and face to face appointments. There is a new focus on young people due to the 
increase in smoking rates during lock down.  
 

2.6 Drug Treatment Services 
 
Delphi and Renaissance who are the organisations that make up Horizon Treatment services 
were delivering a service throughout COVID.  Telephone appointments and face to face 
depending on risk.  Supervised consumption requirements were reviewed on an individual 
basis at the start of first lock down and numbers reduced significantly. At the start of the 
pandemic, lock boxes for methadone were distributed to ensure people were kept safe whilst 
having methadone at home for 2 week period.  Breaking Free online was offered to people 
in treatment to allow for remote computerised support. 
 
The number of needles taken through needle exchange services has reduced significantly 
throughout COVID, and this has been seen nationally. 
 
Numbers in treatment for opiates have stayed relatively stable throughout COVID.  For 
alcohol, there was a slight decrease in numbers during the first lockdown but then started to 
increase to their regular amount.  Numbers in treatment for alcohol are low though 
compared to need and a service review is being planned to look how these can be increased. 
 
Hep C treatment service (supported by the harm reduction outreach team) ceased due to 
BTH staff being re-deployed to COVID wards during the first lockdown.  
 
The Lived Experience Team and harm reduction outreach (Renaissance) supported the public 
health response (everybody in) – including supporting dependent people whilst they were 
isolating with COVID 
 
The Lived Experience Team consulted patients and Delphi consulted staff to determine the 
model of service going forward. Using this information, the providers and commissioners 
have worked on a new service specification to shape the service going forward building on 
the positive elements of service innovation during the pandemic. 
 

2.7 Warmer Homes 
 

Warmer homes work through Cosy Homes in Lancashire (CHiL) continued throughout COVID 
to minimise the impact of cold to people living in fuel poverty. With installers taking 
precautions to keep households and themselves safe. New work on residential park homes 
was delayed until the autumn of 2020. The Warmer Homes Programme was successfully 
completed and a further £17 million in green energy funding has been successfully bid for by 
Blackpool Council on behalf of all Lancashire. Authorities. 
 

Page 46



Appendix 7(a) 

   

The table below shows the number of boiler replacements and first time central heating 
installations completed. 
 

  
Boiler 

Replacements 

First-time Central 

Heating (WHF) 

Blackpool 2020/2021 54 118 

Blackpool 2021/Aug 2022 1 45 

Total 55 163 

   

Total Number of Installs  218 

 
2.8 GP services 

 
The majority of GP public health services ceased during COVID measures, to allow capacity 
for the vaccination programme. Plans are in place to provide top up training to ensure that 
practices maintain competency in clinical interventions ready to restart provision. Some 
practices have continued provision where staff have not been reallocated to the vaccination 
programme. 

 
2.9 Healthy Weight Services 

 
Making Changes – children and families weight management programme - This programme 
continued to operate during the pandemic.  Our leisure services provide the service and they 
moved the 12 week programme to an on-line provision.  This was achieved through creating 
a private Facebook group and then presentation recap was prepared and sent through via 
email to the families.  The sessions included nutrition topics, physical activities and weekly 
challenges for the families to complete.  The service is back operating with a blended 
approach which involves both face to face provision and on-line provision. 
 
Fit2Go – It wasn’t possible for this programme to operate during the early pandemic as this 
is a school based programme.  However, as schools went back the Football Trust worked with 
schools to get them engaged back with the programme.  Some were undertaken as face to 
face sessions within the schools and some were operated virtually.  Now that the schools are 
back it is anticipated the programme will be back up and running during the autumn term. 

 
2.10 Alcohol 

 
Public Health England has reported on trends in alcohol consumption and harm – increase in 
the number alcohol specific deaths over the pandemic, driven by an unprecedented annual 
increase in alcoholic liver disease deaths above levels seen pre-pandemic.  Despite clubs, 
pubs etc closing during national lockdowns, the total amount of alcohol released for sale 
during the pandemic was still similar to the pre-pandemic years, which suggests people are 
drinking more at home. Comparing March 2020 and March 2021, there was a 58.6% 
increase of people reporting that they are drinking at increasing and higher-risk levels (50 
units a week for men, 35 units a week for women). This is a further concern when considering 
hidden harm from Alcohol use and potential impact on DV which has risen throughout 
COVID. 

Page 47

https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/covid-19-indirect-effects/
https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/covid-19-indirect-effects/


Appendix 7(a) 

   

 
Delphi and Renaissance are the organisations that make up Horizon Treatment services for 
Alcohol and were delivering a service throughout COVID.  Telephone appointments and face 
to face depending on risk. During COVID the move to virtual/phone/online worked well for 
many service users and they will be continued with a hybrid model.  Some f2f has returned 
to normal within COVID guidelines some has remained online/virtual. 
 
In terms of local snapshot data for alcohol, and using numbers going through treatment from 
the Delphi contract review info - there were 227 in treatment for the month of April 2020 
and for Feb 2021 it was 269, this could be because of COVID restrictions to service provision 
and the beginning of the pandemic, also a small dip is shown in the NDTMs report.  These 
will be people that need a specialist service so are probably drinking a lot, and there will be 
plenty of harmful drinkers as well that currently don’t access treatment.  In- Patient Detox 
decreased over COVID due to restrictions on numbers of beds to allow social distancing.  This 
number has now risen again and we are seeing significant investment in this area with an 
increase in places available through extra funding. 
 
As noted above there was a slight decrease in numbers accessing services at the beginning 
of the first lockdown but then it started to increase and recover to their regular 
amount.  Numbers in treatment for alcohol are low though compared to need and a service 
review is being undertaken to look how these can be increased with specific focus on women, 
men in their 40s and why people aren’t accessing services sooner, what are the 
barriers/social perceptions etc? 
 
The Current proposal and recovery plan is to provide 2 days a week of flexible alcohol only 
provision as numbers in structured treatment were falling even before COVID from a peak in 
2010/11, to 499 in 2018/19, and then 415 2019/20.  This ties in with alcohol services being 
merged in with drug provision which hasn’t proven successful.  We are also looking into male 
female referral numbers since lockdown as use of the ‘Lower my Drinking’ APP over COVID. 
Regarding engagement the App shows 724 people have used it over lock down and there is 
female engagement at 67.4% which is very different to presentation at frontline services 
which we will be addressing.   

 

Page 48



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Neil Hartley-Smith, Clinical Director Blackpool, Fylde and 
Wyre CCG 

Date of Meeting: 14 October 2021 

 

DEVELOPMENT OF FYLDE COAST PLACE-BASED PARTNERSHIP 
 

1.0  
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1  
 

This report provides an update on the development of the Fylde coast place-based 
partnership, formerly known as the Integrated Care Partnership. The report provides the 
national, regional and local context, focusing in detail on the common local developments to 
date. 
 

2.0  Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1  To provide regular updates to the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee on the 
development of the Fylde coast place-based partnership to enable clear and democratic 
mechanisms of accountability. 

  
3.0  Reasons for recommendation(s): 

 
3.1  
 

To ensure there is a framework of joint accountability for the development and delivery of 
the Fylde coast place based partnership.  
 

3.2  Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the 
Council? 
 

No 

3.3  Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 
 

Yes 

4.0  Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

4.1  Not applicable. 
 

5.0  Council priority: 
 

5.1  The relevant Council priority is  

 The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool 

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



6.0  Background information 
 

6.1  On 6 July 2021, the Health and Care Bill was published, setting out key legislative proposals to 

reform the delivery and organisation of health services in England, to promote more joined 

up services and to ensure more of a focus on improving population health rather than simply 

providing health care services.  

 

Significant development activity has taken place at both systems level (Lancashire and South 

Cumbria) and locally at place level (Fylde coast) to prepare for the proposed NHS reforms 

that will see Integrated Care Systems (ICS’s) become statutory bodies from April 2022.  

 

The Integrated Care System (ICS) Board has agreed a two-step process for Integrated Care 

Partnership (ICP) development as part of the wider NHS system reform agenda. Step 1 was 

the creation of a common ICP strategic narrative to set out what working in partnership 

means for all partners, what we want to do together as partners and how we will enable that 

change. Step 2 was the prioritisation and scoping of a number of work programmes to 

describe in greater detail, and subsequently deliver, the content of the strategic narrative. 

 
The Board has since agreed the common strategic narrative (see appendix 1) and also given 

approval to proceed with Step 2 of the ICP development programme, which included: 

 

 The creation and deployment of an ICP Maturity Matrix to support self and peer-

assessments on the different levels of maturity in each ICP 

 A number of 1:1 / small group conversations with system leaders from various sectors 

within the ICS 

 Larger-scale sessions with primary care colleagues in response to specific feedback 

received via the LMC 

 Four externally facilitated workshops – three linked to specific topics that were 

identified by the ICP Development Advisory Group as a result of feedback received 

during the development of the common ICP strategic narrative, and a final workshop 

to test the outputs of Step 2 before presentation to the ICS Board.  

 
6.2  The report provided as a background paper outlines in detail the work already carried out as 

well as the plans for further development.  
 

6.3  In June 2021, The Integrated Care Systems: design framework was published by NHS England. 

The guidance sets out five place-based governance arrangements that could be established 

by the NHS ICS body in partnership with local authorities and other partners to jointly drive 

Page 50



and oversee further local integration.  

 
Further national guidance was published on 2 September 2021, entitled: “Thriving places: 

Guidance on the development of place-based partnerships as part of statutory integrated 

care systems”. The content of this document is summarised as: 

 
“Key points  

 Place-based partnerships are collaborative arrangements formed by the 

organisations responsible for arranging and delivering health and care services 

in a locality or community.  

 Place-based partnerships will remain as the foundations of integrated care 

systems as they are put on a statutory footing (subject to legislation), building 

on existing local arrangements and relationships.  

 It will be for system partners to determine the footprint for each place-based 

partnership, the leadership arrangements and what functions it will carry out.  

 This document describes the activities placed partnerships may lead, 

capabilities required and potential governance arrangements.  

 
Action required  

 As part of the establishment of new ICS arrangements from April 2021 ICS 

leaders should confirm their proposed place-based partnership arrangements 

for 2022/23, including their boundaries, leadership and membership.” 

 

A robust engagement process across all 5 place-based partnerships has taken place to 
address this action required. A report summarising the recommendations is currently being 
considered and further clarification will be available in December 2021.  
 
 

6.4  Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 
 

  
7.0  List of Appendices: 

 
7.1  Appendix X(a): Integrated Care Partnership Common Strategic Narrative 

 
8.0  Financial considerations: 

 
8.1  The financial allocation for each of the 5 place-based partnerships has not yet been agreed. 

This allocation will replace the current Clinical Commissioning Group funding allocation.  
 

Page 51



9.0  Legal considerations: 
 

9.1  The Health and Care Bill (21-22) was introduced in the House of Commons on 6th July 2021 
and after its second reading is currently at the committee stage. The development work 
outlined in this report is subject to the Bill being passed.  
 

10.0  Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1  A place-based partnership risk log is currently in development to ensure a robust oversight of 
potential risks is in place. 
 

11.0  Equalities considerations: 
 

11.1  Equality Impact Analysis will need to be carried out for any potential changes in services as a 
result of this reform.  
 

12.0  Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations: 
 

12.1  None. 
 

13.0  Internal/external consultation undertaken: 
 

13.1  A partnership engagement exercise was carried out with members of the place-based 
partnership board with regard to future governance and accountability arrangements.  
 

14.0  Background papers: 
 

14.1  The development of place-based partnerships: Proposals for next stages of development in 
2021. 

 

Page 52



Developing Integrated Care Partnerships in 
Lancashire and South Cumbria

P
age 53

sharon.davis
Typewritten Text
Appendix 7(a)



2

What do we mean by an ‘Integrated Care Partnership’?
An Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) is a collaboration 
of planners and providers across health, local authority 
and the wider community, who take collective 
responsibility for improving the health and wellbeing 
of residents within a place, with a population of up to 
500,000. Most people’s day to day care and support 
needs will be met within a place and delivered in 
neighbourhoods of 30,000 to 50,000 people.

The document entitled “Integrating care: Next steps to 
building strong and effective integrated care systems 
across England”, published by NHSEI in November 2020 
states that:

“Every area is different, but common 
characteristics of the most successful are the full 
involvement of all partners who contribute to 
the place’s health and care; an important role for 
local councils (often through joint appointments 
or shared budgets); a leading role for clinical 
primary care leaders through primary care 
networks; and a clear, strategic relationship with 
health and wellbeing boards.”

The partnership will create a feeling of belonging to 
a place, where all partners are valued and respected, 
and mutual support is offered to all partners. This 
will be particularly significant in challenging times. 
It is important to acknowledge that residents are 
co-partners in the continued evolution of ICPs, 
and that social movements in communities can 
increase people’s ownership of their own health 
and wellbeing and mobilise communities to support 
each other.

The common purpose of an ICP is to act as an 
enabling collaboration that will address specific 
place-based challenges and deliver within each place 
the component parts of the Integrated Care System 
(ICS) strategy.

The core aims of an ICP are to:

Improve the health and wellbeing of the 
population and reduce inequalities

Provide consistent, high quality services that 
remove unwarranted variation in outcomes 

Consistently achieve national standards 
/ targets across the sectors within the 
partnership

Maximise the use of a place-based financial 
allocation and resources

P
age 54



3

As a minimum, each ICP will have the following all age 
service provision at place level, working together to 
simplify and modernise care and implement service 
models which deliver improved outcomes:

 � Public health and wider community 
development 

 � Community-based wellbeing support, including 
social prescribing activities, VCFSE provision 
and local access to green spaces, and leisure 
facilities 

 � GP and wider primary care, delivered through 
Primary Care Networks 

 � Community health care

 � Community mental health care

 � Urgent and emergency care, including 
physical and mental health (noting that 
some emergency services will be provided 
in a networked model across the ICS, e.g. 
stroke, trauma)

 � Ongoing management of long term conditions, 
including the use of skills, expertise and 
resources that have historically been accessed 
via referral to acute care services

 � Local acute hospital services (noting that 
some services will be provided in a networked 
model across the ICS, and there will be tertiary 
services provided in some places for the ICS-
wide population)

 � Social care, education, housing, employment 
and training support 

The providers of these services will be partners within 
the ICP working alongside place-based commissioning 
and planning teams.

Several providers will be working collaboratively at more 
than one level; for example, NHS Trusts who provide 
acute and community services will be collaborating 
within neighbourhoods through the provision of 
community services, within places through the 
provision of specialist expertise to support the ongoing 
management of long term conditions, and across the 
system in the networked provision of elective care.

In the future, it is expected that the NHS will move 
towards organisations within each ICP receiving a 
financial allocation for the place, based on capitation. 

This, along with the potential for increased use of 
pooled budgets, will mean that partners within the ICP 
will make collective decisions on how best to invest 
financial resources in order to deliver neighbourhood-
based, place-based, regional and national requirements 
and ambitions across health, care and wellbeing. 
Partners will need to be clear on their own role in 
delivery and will need to hold each other to account 
to ensure collective achievement of their place-
based objectives.P

age 55



4

What will we need to do collectively as partners within an ICP?
To achieve the common purpose of an ICP, there are several areas where collaborative working will be needed: Place-based leadership and 

collaboration
Effective, collaborative leadership – with a clear, 
common purpose, and drawn from all parts of the 
system including democratic, clinical and professional 
teams – has been shown to be essential to developing 
the partnership culture needed to create and sustain 
system-wide improvement. ICPs will:

 � Co-create a vision for the place that delivers 
the system and place strategies through a 
partnership of equals.

 � Provide a ‘system management’ function that 
connects the partners within the place, as well 
as influencing key priorities across the ICS and 
connecting each place to the wider system. 
This function will include shaping the culture 
of the partnership through a population health 
management approach to the planning and 
delivery of services; holding each other to 
account for delivery; acting as place-based 
and system-wide integrators and catalysts for 
change; brokering challenging conversations 
between partners; and ensuring that decisions 
are made in the best interest of the place. 
It will need to encompass the expertise and 
experience of place-based commissioning 
and provision.

ICPs will need to 
collaborate on...

Valuing and developing 
the workforce

Maximising the 
use of resources

Improving quality of 
service

Population health 
management

Planning 
integrated  

services

Delivering integrated 
services

Listening to the voice of 
our communities

Place-based leadership 
and collaboration

L
or

P
age 56



5

 � Use this system management approach to 
support a collaboration of providers across 
different sectors and multiple organisations 
to build seamless, integrated services that 
respond to the health and wellbeing needs of 
local residents.

 � Promote social value in our communities by 
employing a workforce that is drawn from, 
and representative of, the population in the 
place; by offering fair pay and conditions 
of employment; by offering employability 
programmes that support people to acquire 
the skills needed to work in health and care; 
and by offering apprenticeship programmes 
which assist in providing employment now and 
creating the workforce of the future.

 � Promote, embed and demonstrate 
compassionate leadership across all services 
within the place.

 � Build a culture of rapid improvement with a 
shared, consistently applied methodology; a 
management system that aligns improvement 
activity to priorities and ways of working; and a 
set of leadership behaviours which supports an 
engaged and empowered workforce.

 � Implement accountability frameworks that 
incentivise evidence-based care provision and 
improved outcomes for individuals and for the 
population as a whole, shaping priorities and 
decision-making.

 � Support effective place-based organisational 
development programmes, recognising the 
need for increased support during large-scale 
and/or sustained periods of change.

 � Ensure systems are in place to provide 
comprehensive organisational development, 
coaching and mentoring support for leaders 
to facilitate the transition from organisational 
to place-based leadership behaviours and 
decision-making.

Listening to the voice of our 
communities
Our residents and communities are a fundamental 
part of our partnerships and their voice and lived 
experience is vitally important in creating the culture 
of a social movement in our neighbourhoods and 
places, in ensuring that residents’ needs are heard and 
understood, and in shaping services that meet local 
needs. ICPs will:

 � Ensure local engagement is culturally 
competent, in line with the demographics of 
the place.

 � Engage with residents to ensure co-production 
in health and wellbeing needs assessments, 
delivery plans, operating models and service 
redesign / transformation activities.

 � Listen to feedback from patients, carers, service 
users and residents to ensure that services are 
evaluated from quantitative and qualitative 
perspectives, and that this feedback is used to 
inform future service provision.

 � Engage with residents (and our workforce, 
many of whom are residents themselves) to 
encourage a social movement that fosters and 
enhances an increased responsibility for health 
and wellbeing and mobilises communities to 
support each other better.

 � Proactively work with communities to create 
a greater sense of accountability to the local 
population for the quality of services provided 
and the resultant outcomes.

 � Seize the short-term benefits in restoration 
and incentivise change to build the culture and 
capability for the medium and long term.

P
age 57



6

Planning integrated services
A more integrated approach to the planning of services 
across all sectors will support more efficient and 
effective use of resources. ICPs will:

 � Lead the creation of a fully integrated, place-
based delivery plan that is able to respond to:

 � National strategies, plans, standards/targets 
 � The requirements of national and regional 

regulators 
 � Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS strategies
 � Existing place-based strategies 
 � Place and neighbourhood-based health and 

wellbeing/joint strategic needs assessments

 � Join up population intelligence capability, 
and health and local authority planning, 
including joint commissioning, transformation 
and at-scale change programmes, 
quality improvement, service delivery and 
empowered communities.

 � Ensure that actual and potential inequalities are 
identified and addressed in all aspects of service 
planning and provision.

Delivering integrated services
Patients, service users and our own workforce often 
describe their frustrations at the fragmented nature 
of our service provision. A key shift in the transition 
to significantly increased partnership working should 
be the removal of unnecessary boundaries between 
services and professions. ICPs will:

 � Work with partners to ensure the delivery 
of high quality, safe, affordable integrated 
services, tailored across the differing needs 
within the place footprint at neighbourhood/
PCN, district and place.

 � Ensure that all partners work together so 
that services will be predominantly focused 
on improving health and wellbeing through 
a population health management approach 
which will include self-care, preventative action, 
vulnerability reduction, anticipatory care, 
community-based models of care and support, 
long term condition management using 
digital technology, and addressing the wider 
determinants of health and wellbeing with 
clinicians and professional groups working at 
the top of their licence to support complex care 
in the community.

 � Ensure that all partners work together so 
there is an operating model for the place that 
includes standard service offers and minimum 
standard specifications to reduce health 

inequalities and unwarranted variation within 
the place and, where appropriate, across the 
places within the ICS. These service offers and 
standard specifications will be outcome focused 
in order to allow for necessary flexibility in 
delivery and eliminate asynchronous care. The 
operating model will include:

 � Primary, community, acute, mental health 
and social care working as self-directed 
teams across organisational boundaries, 
to deliver services to 30-50k populations, 
driven by data, mobilising prevention and 
anticipatory care. PCNs will be at the core of 
these teams.

 � Joining up of civic and community assets, 
providing partnership MDTs which will include 
housing, Department for Work and Pensions, 
voluntary sector support and access to 
community assets to support people to 
maintain independence.

 � Long term condition management where 
the focus of specialist/consultant led 
support is on holistic continuous condition 
and exacerbation management, aimed at 
keeping people at home.

 � More intensive community support when 
required to keep people at home, including 
at times of crisis 

 � Elective care, urgent and emergency care, 
including physical and mental health, 
providing timely and appropriate access

P
age 58



7

 � Ensure that all partners work together to 
provide fully integrated health and care 
records that are available to all staff involved 
in the provision of care across the place, with 
information governance agreements that 
support and enable integrated working. The 
ambition is to move towards records that are 
resident owned.

 � Make best use of digital solutions that will 
support residents staying in their own homes 
wherever safe and effective, predict need and 
support effective mobilisation of the workforce, 
and promote multi-disciplinary working to 
deliver seamless care.

Population health management
Moving towards a preventative, proactive and holistic 
approach to the health and wellbeing of our residents 
is key to improving outcomes and reducing inequalities. 
ICPs will:

 � Ensure plans are in place to implement a 
population health management infrastructure 
and culture.

 � Ensure that the ICP uses a population 
health management approach to service 
planning, i.e. making use of holistic data from 
multiple sources to identify the health and 
wellbeing needs of the population (place and 
neighbourhood).

 � Ensure that a risk stratification approach is 
used to plan how services can meet health 
and wellbeing needs and reduce inequalities, 
including addressing the wider determinants 
of health and wellbeing such as housing, 
environmental quality and access to good 
employment and training.

 � Use population data to mobilise the workforce, 
working to accountability frameworks that 
demonstrate delivery on outcomes and 
incentivise prevention and anticipatory care.

 � Build a collaborative decision-making process 
that prioritises investment in anticipatory and 
preventative care to reduce specific risks and 
vulnerabilities within the local population.

 � Ensure the creation of integrated population 
health management units in neighbourhoods 
by building on existing neighbourhood working, 
community hubs, and PCNs, whilst also drawing 
in acute care specialists who focus on long term 
conditions and the elderly.

Improving quality of services
We know that many services in our system provide 
good quality care which is rated highly by patients 
and services users. It is important for us to build on 
that and learn from these teams / organisations to 
provide consistent, high quality care across each place. 
ICPs will:

 � Ensure all partners work together so that actual 
and potential inequalities are identified and 
addressed in all aspects of service planning and 
provision

 � Ensure place-based performance and 
assurance is focused on delivering the required 
improvements in population health, outcomes 
and inequalities.

 � Ensure all partners use an evidence-based 
approach to care planning and provision, 
simplifying and standardising pathways across 
the place and within neighbourhoods.

 � Lead the deployment of improvement science 
at pace and scale to support rapid cycles 
of change, allowing freedom to act and 
promoting innovation.

 � Create an integrated, place-based plan for the 
provision of high quality services that meets 
the requirements of the regulators across the 
sectors within the partnership.

P
age 59



8

 � Create and maintain an open and transparent 
culture that encourages incident reporting, 
management of serious incidents and the 
implementation of associated learning 
from incidents across all sectors within 
the partnership.

 � Ensure there is sufficient capacity and that 
services are of the highest quality to meet 
required national standards / targets

 � Design and deliver culturally competent 
personalised care services.

Maximising the use of 
resources
Resources within each place are scarce and it is 
therefore important that we use these wisely in order 
to gain the maximum benefit for our residents. It is 
therefore proposed that the actions set out below will 
accelerate the next stage of development. ICPs will:

 � Be collectively accountable for a place-based 
capitated NHS budget within an agreed ICS 
financial framework along with any pooled 
budgets across the NHS and other partners 
within the ICP.

 � Use a place-based collective prioritisation 
and decision-making framework to agree the 
allocation of these financial resources within 
the place.

 � Work with partners to create an integrated, 
place-based financial plan that supports 
population-based budgets and demonstrates 
best value for the ‘place pound’ whilst 
maximising impact on population health, 
health inequalities, quality of service provision 
and outcomes.

 � Use contracting and payment mechanisms 
within the place that are based on incentives, 
with agreed shared risk / gain models and 
aligned financial processes, building on the 
PCN Directed Enhanced Services and local 
quality schemes.

 � Plan and deliver local cost improvement 
schemes to ensure best value for money.

 � Ensure local understanding of community-
based physical assets and influence their 
collective use across partners within the place.

 � Make best use of business intelligence / health 
informatics resources across the ICP partners, 
and as appropriate with wider partners across 
the ICS, to provide real time information for 
use across the place and a single suite of 
performance / assurance reports

 � Integrate corporate teams to work across the 
place rather than maintaining separate teams 
in individual organisations.

Valuing and developing the 
workforce
The partners within each ICP employ a significant 
number of people, many of whom are also residents 
within the place where they work. Partners have a 
duty to support their workforce and to contribute to 
the socioeconomic development of the place. There 
are a significant number of volunteers in each place 
who make invaluable contributions that should be 
supported and recognised. ICPs will:

 � Recognise that key partners are anchor 
institutions in each place, acknowledging the 
fundamental role they have in advancing the 
welfare of the populations they serve and the 
way in which they can support local community 
wealth and development.

 � Be a partnership of employers that proactively 
supports the employment of our local people 
by providing equity of access to opportunities 
and employing a workforce that is drawn from, 
and representative of, the population served by 
the place.

 � Support fair and equitable pay and conditions 
of employment including paying a living wage 
and providing stable employment which offers 
fair working conditions and promotes the health 
and wellbeing of all staff.

P
age 60



9

 � Ensure that partners develop and offer 
employability programmes that provide training 
and support to help local people acquire the 
skills needed to work in health and care, and 
working with community partners to support 
residents who might otherwise face barriers 
to work.

 � Work with local Academies, schools, Further 
Education colleges and Higher Education 
institutions to offer apprenticeship programmes 
which assist in providing employment for the 
local community and in supporting the creation 
of the workforce of the future.

 � Work with partners to create a placed-
based people plan for the recruitment, 
retention and ongoing development of an 
integrated workforce.

 � Integrate the workforce to support seamless 
service provision and minimise handovers 
between individuals and organisations across 
the partners within the place.

 � Provide joint appointments and rotational posts 
across multiple care settings in order to make 
best use of, and/or further enhance, skills and 
experience

 � Support professional development and career 
progression to staff at all levels and across all 
aspects of provision.

Integrated Care 
Partnerships will 

deliver

A framework for 
engaging with residents 

and communities

A fully integrated, 
place-based 
delivery plan 

A population health 
management plan and 

associated infrastructure

An integrated, place-based 
plan for the provision of 

high quality services

An integrated, 
place-based 

financial plan

An accountability 
framework between 

providers

An integrated, place-
based workforce plan

An operating model for the 
place, with standard service 

offers and specifications 

p
m

b
b

a
p

q
b

o

P
age 61



10

How will we need to work together as partners within an ICP? 
It must be recognised that without legislative change, 
certain types of organisations are accountable to 
specific regulators, with ring-fenced budgets, and will 
be held to account for delivering certain services and/
or functions.

Therefore, we need to consider what can and cannot be 
undertaken collectively, how we will organise ourselves 
to manage this locally, and how we will respond to 

our respective regulators. This will require liaison 
with regional and national teams to support the shift 
from organisational accountabilities to place-based 
accountabilities. 

This is likely to require a new and explicit mechanism 
for holding ICPs to account for what is in scope of 
place-based, collective delivery.

Partners within an ICP will share responsibilities, risks 
and resources. This will require some delegation of 
decision-making to the place rather than organisations, 
clarity on which partners are delivering which services 
/ functions within the ICP, and changes to current 
organisational-based leadership structures and 
governance arrangements.

Delegated  
decision 
making

Supporting 
governance 

arrangements

Supporting 
leadership 

arrangements

How we will need to work together...

P
age 62



11

Delegated decision making
Each ICP will require a framework that defines the 
scope within which decision-making happens by place-
based system leaders operating within parameters 
agreed by the partner organisations.

This is likely to be achieved via a scheme of delegation 
that is explicit about what will be managed via 
organisations and what will be managed via the ICP. 
This will include decision-making across all of the 
functions of the ICP, and all partners within the ICP.

Supporting governance 
arrangements
Each ICP will require a structure where it can exercise 
this delegated decision-making, ensuring that partners 
deliver what has been agreed, and maintaining 
appropriate levels of lay/non-executive oversight and 
clinical engagement.

As part of this process each ICP will need to consider 
the following requirements: 

 � The use of formal memoranda of 
understanding, partnership agreements or 
alliances to provide clarity on the role and 
responsibilities of each partner organisation 
within the ICP

 � A place where delegated decision making from 
the statutory bodies can be discharged, i.e. 
a place based ICP Board that is the decision-
making group of the ICP, as outlined by a 
scheme of delegation and enacted by the 
members of the ICP Board. This may need to be 
supported by other place-based committees, 
which could function using a Committees in 
Common approach.

 � A cross-organisational, multi-professional 
clinical and professional leadership body 
that allows senior clinicians / practitioners 
from across the partners within health, social 
care and third sector within the ICP to make 
decisions / recommendations on clinical 
practice, pathways, etc.

 � Meaningful clinical, professional and democratic 
leadership and engagement, to ensure that 
there is appropriate representation and 
engagement across neighbourhoods, districts 
and the place.

 � A mechanism for identifying and managing 
risk for the ICP, with proportionate distribution 
of risk across partners, and clarity on which 
partner within the ICP owns the risk along with 
which partners contribute to the mitigations

 � Systems and processes for partners in the place 
to hold each other to account for performance 
and support each other where necessary. 
These will need to align to the accountability 
framework within the ICS and the approach 
agreed with regulators.

It should be noted that effective implementation of 
these governance arrangements may require changes 
to current organisational constitutions and Terms of 
Reference of existing organisational groups.

P
age 63



12

Supporting leadership 
arrangements
Each ICP will require a leadership team for the place 
that will be acting independently of any single 
organisation (albeit that they may continue to hold 
organisational leadership roles) working to deliver the 
core aims of an ICP.

Each ICP will need to consider the following:

 � An ICP Chair who will be responsible for creating 
productive collaborative relationships within 
the ICP and across the ICS, and for effective 
leadership of the ICP Board and its role in 
ensuring delivery of the core aims of the ICP 

 � An executive leadership team with members 
who have responsibilities across the place 
(albeit that they may continue to hold 
organisational leadership roles).

 � High levels of clinical and professional 
leadership and influence, where leaders are 
acting as a collective voice on behalf of the 
health and care system.

 � Shared purpose and values that have been 
adopted by the ICP partners

 � Leaders who demonstrate high levels of 
trust, collectively overcome challenges, 
celebrate shared success and drive continuous 
improvement to shared objectives through 
adaptive change and a learning culture.

 � Leaders who role model values and behaviours 
and cascade down through their teams.

 � Leaders who respect that the voice of all 
partners has equal weight and value.

 � Over time it is anticipated that an ICP Chief 
Officer will be recruited who will be responsible 
for the delivery of the core aims of the ICP, 
leading the executive leadership team and 
holding them to account for delivery.

It is suggested that there will be a need for an 
‘Integration Lead’ within each ICP. It is intended that 
this role will work alongside the senior executives from 
the partners within the ICP and local communities to:

 � Ensure effective integrated approaches 
are taken to the health needs of the local 
population – using population health 
management techniques and building on the 
experience and expertise within communities.

 � Support the development of integration across 
all services (primary / community / care / 
hospital / VCFSE) in the place and ensuring 
that PCNs work effectively to support each 
neighbourhood of 30,000 to 50,000 residents.

 � Work with health partners and local authorities 
to identify joint opportunities for health and 
care services to be transformed, building on 
lessons learned through the response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic and the potential to use 
new technology.

 � Coordinate local contributions to health, social 
and economic development – set as appropriate 
within the context of wider system strategies.

P
age 64



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Relevant Officer: Mrs Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager. 

Date of Meeting: 14 October 2021 

 

 

SCRUTINY WORKPLAN UPDATE REPORT 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To review the work of the Committee, the implementation of recommendations and 
note the update on the Enhanced Network Model of Acute Stroke Care and 
Rehabilitation in Lancashire and South Cumbria briefing. 
 

2.0 Recommendations: 
 

2.1 
 
 

2.2 
 
2.3 

To approve the Committee Workplan, taking into account any suggestions for 
amendment or addition. 
 

To monitor the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations/actions. 
 
To note the outcomes from the briefing on the Enhanced Network Model of Acute 
Stroke Care and Rehabilitation in Lancashire and South Cumbria held on 20 
September 2021. 

  
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendations: 

3.1 
 

To ensure the Committee is carrying out its work efficiently and effectively. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

N/A 

4.0 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



5.0 Council Priority: 
 

5.1 The relevant Council Priority is: 
 

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience. 
 

6.0 Background Information 
 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Workplan 
 
The Committee’s Workplan is attached at Appendix 9(a) and was developed following 
a workplanning workshop with the Committee in June 2021.  The Workplan is a 
flexible document that sets out the work that will be undertaken by the Committee 
over the course of the year, both through scrutiny review and committee meetings. It 
has recently been amended to take account of the pandemic and the impact on the 
workload of public health in particular. 
 
Committee Members are invited to suggest topics at any time that might be suitable 
for scrutiny review through completion of the Scrutiny Review Checklist. The 
checklist forms part of the mandatory scrutiny procedure for establishing review 
panels and must therefore be completed and submitted for consideration by the 
Committee, prior to a topic being approved for scrutiny. 
 

6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
6.3.1 
 
 
 
6.3.2 
 
 
 

Implementation of Recommendations/Actions 
 
The table attached at Appendix 9(b) has been developed to assist the Committee in 
effectively ensuring that the recommendations made by the Committee are acted 
upon.  The table will be regularly updated and submitted to each Committee 
meeting.  
 
Members are requested to consider the updates provided in the table and ask follow 
up questions as appropriate to ensure that all recommendations are implemented. 
 
Enhanced Network Model of Acute Stroke Care and Rehabilitation in Lancashire 
and South Cumbria 
 
Councillors Hutton, O’Hara, D Scott, M Scott, Hunter and Wing attended a briefing 
led by Catherine Curley, Clinical Director, Sharon Walkden, Project Manager and Jack 
Smith, Director, all from the network model of stroke and rehabilitation. 
 
Members were provided with an overview of the key concerns in stroke care 
provision and rehabilitation in Blackpool and noted that the performance of key 
services in Blackpool was significantly behind other areas in Lancashire and South 
Cumbria. It was noted that a key aim of the new model was to level up provision and 

Page 66



 
 
6.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3.5 
 
 
 
 
6.3.6 
 
 
 
 

make significant improvements to services in Blackpool. 
 
The key to good outcomes was the speed at which a stroke was accurately diagnosed 
and it was noted that in order to address this it was important to have good 
paramedics, a specialist team at the door to the emergency department and a 24/7 
presence in the department. Members asked numerous questions with regards to 
how the improvement would be achieved in Blackpool and the timescales for this 
improvement. 
 
It was reported that there would be three acute stroke centres in Lancashire and 
South Cumbria, one of which would be located in Blackpool. There was ringfenced 
capital funding to modify and provide the necessary equipment for improved 
provision and recruitment would commence in January 2022. The difficulties in 
staffing in the NHS were noted and it was highlighted that well trained stroke 
specialists were required which made these positions attractive to existing staff in 
other departments. It was hoped that staff would be ready to commence in post in 
April 2022. 
 
The representatives in attendance felt that improvement would be seen in the 
statistics for Blackpool in the new financial year and that the new staff, when in 
place, would make a significant difference to performance as they had in Blackburn. 
The importance of leadership was also noted. 
 
It was agreed that a further update would be provided to the Committee at its 
meeting on 31 March 2022 to update on the recruitment position and other action 
taken in order to improve stroke services in Blackpool. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No 
 
7.0 

 
List of Appendices: 
 

 

 Appendix 9(a): Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Workplan 
Appendix 9(b): Implementation of Recommendations/Actions 
 

 
 

8.0  Financial considerations: 
 

8.1  None. 
 

9.0  Legal considerations: 
 

9.1  None. 
 

10.0  Risk management considerations: 

Page 67



 
10.1  None. 

 
11.0  Equalities considerations: 

 
11.1  None. 

 
12.0  Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations: 

 
12.1  None. 

 
13.0  Internal/external consultation undertaken: 

 
13.1  None. 

 
14.0  Background papers: 

 
14.1  None. 

 
 

Page 68



Adult Social Care And Health Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2021-2022 

14 October 

2021 

1. System flow - Rather than delayed discharges, whole series of events including what 

happens after discharge. 

2. Adult Services – complete service overview including an update on service recovery 

arrangements. Also to include medium term financial strategy and financial 

performance. 

3. Public Health Covid service recovery (as agreed at meeting March 2021) specific 

reference to Alcohol Abuse Treatment and support services during the pandemic, 

increases in alcohol consumption and impact and to include financial performance. 

4. Development of the ICS and ICP to receive a presentation on the development of 

the system and local partnership. 

 

2 December 

2021 

1. CCG Mid-year performance 

2. Blackpool Safeguarding Adults Annual Report  

3. Sexual Health Services – provision of services/long term impact of pandemic on wait 

time 

4. Blackpool Teaching Hospitals Trust Restoration of Services including continuing 

improvement 

3 February 

2022 

1. Adult Services – complete service overview. Also to include financial performance. 

2. Conclusion of the Fulfilling Lives project identifying the impact of the closure of the 

service, how the gaps caused by it ending were filled, data sharing and reframing 

communications in a positive way. 

3. Integrated Care Partnership – update on establishment, impact on Blackpool 

residents 

31 March 2022 1. Blackpool Teaching Hospitals Trust/CCG: Overview report addressing progress made 

with patients waiting more than 52 weeks, long covid and the use of 111. 

2. Smoking cessation new model application and impact. 

3. Enhanced Stroke Network progress update, impact on required improvement 

4. Mental Health Services update on action taken in response to CQC inspection. 

 

TBC 23 June 

2022 

1. CCG End of year performance 

2. Adult Services – complete service overview. Also to include and financial 

performance. 

Page 69



 

Informal Briefings: 

October/November 2021: Pathology Collaboration (as agreed May 2021). 

Scrutiny Review Work  

Informal review - 

ongoing 

Support for new mums during pandemic including health visiting and 

breastfeeding support (pre and post pandemic) – including recovery programmes 

– what offer has been put in place to support them such as call backs etc. 

Covered to degree in discussions with BTH representatives at 26 

November 2020 meeting. Also received an email update from PH on 4 

December 2020 for review and questions. 

9 November 21 

 

Scrutiny review of Supported Housing following agreement at the Committee 

meeting in January 2020.  Commenced November 2020. 

Ongoing. 

18 November 2021 Proposed joint piece of work with Children and Young People’s Scrutiny 

Committee: 

Child and Adolescent Mental Health to include prevalence, performance of 

CAMHS, emotional health, looked after children and additional educational needs. 

Initial meeting to consider service redesign has been held. Request to come back 

12 months after implementation for progress update.  

TBC January/ 

February 2022? 

Dentistry and oral health ensuring adequate and accessible provision in the town. 

Care during the pandemic and impact on provision. Recovery. (NHS England). 

TBC March 2022? Scrutiny review of population health management  

TBC April/May 2022? Dementia – Provision of services/dementia friendly, impact of increasing 

diagnosis, support services on offer, long term impact of pandemic (dementia 

groups to be invited).  

TBC 2021 (once 

pressure of pandemic 

on PH has alleviated). 

Healthy Weight Scrutiny Review - Firstly to review the recommendations in light 

of the time passed since the review was approved. Secondly to consider progress 

of recommendations and impact of the pandemic on the issues identified in the 

report. 

Page 70



Appendix 9(b) 

MONITORING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 DATE OF 
REC 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

UPDATE RAG 
RATING 

1 06.02.20 The Committee agreed that a 
further report on the conclusion of 
the Fulfilling Lives project be 
received in approximately 12 
months alongside a report from the 
Council detailing services to be put 
in place to fill the gap left by the end 
of the project. 
 

3 
February 
2022 

Ian 
Treasure/Arif 
Rajpura 

A briefing on Fulfilling Lives was held in February 2021. 
Members determined that they wished to follow up on 
the following areas: 

1. Progress regarding the funding of the ongoing 

service model by the Clinical Commissioning 

Group. 

2. System change and stigma, reframing 

communications in a positive way for all 

organisations. 

3. Data sharing. 

4. Following closure of BFL to track the impact of 

the closure and the gaps in service provision left 

by the closure. 

 

Not yet 
due. 

2 06.02.20 The Committee considered that the 
current approach to smoking 
cessation was not working and 
queried whether a new model could 
be put in place. It was agreed that 
the new model be presented to 
Members in approximately 12 
months. 
 

March 
2022 

Arif Rajpura Delayed due to the pandemic. New date identified of 
March 2022. 

Not yet 
due. 

3 06.02.20 That an item on dementia be added 
to the workplan. 
 

February 
2022 

Sharon Davis Delayed due to the pandemic. Added to the workplan as 
a scrutiny review panel. 

Not yet 
due 

4 19.09.20 To receive the data from the initial 
findings of the trials regarding 

Tbc Jim Gardner, 
BTH 

Email sent to Dr Gardner for update 23.11.20.  

P
age 71



Appendix 9(b) 

 DATE OF 
REC 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

UPDATE RAG 
RATING 

discharges on the two wards when 
completed. 
 

5 17.09.20 To receive a report on delayed 
discharges in approximately 12 
months to review improvement. 

14 
October 
2021. 

Dr Neil Hartley 
Smith 

Included on agenda. 
 

Green 

6 19.10.20 Mental Health special meeting: 
That a follow up report be provided 
in approximately six months on the 
following outstanding issues: 
The evaluation of the Pysnergy 
service 
The progress made with regards the 
peer support work 
An update on the memory 
assessment service. 
The progress made in opening new 
beds and the potential bid for 
funding for a new learning disability 
unit. 
 

Tbc Caroline 
Donavan 

Follow up special meeting originally identified for May 
2021 was delayed due to the pandemic and the end of 
the temporary coronavirus meeting restrictions. 
 
New date to be confirmed as 28 September 2021. 
 
Meeting held – further updated requested in 6 months, 
to be added to workplan. 

Green 

8 17.03.21 The Committee agreed: 
To receive a report in approximately 
12 months on the progress made 
with regards to patients waiting 
more than 52 weeks. 
To receive updates on ‘long covid’ 
and the use of 111 to future 
meetings of the Committee. 

31 March 
2022 

Jim Gardner Added to workplan. Not yet 
due. 

9 17.03.21 An update on adult services 
recovery arrangements be provided 
in approximately six months. 

14 
October 
2021 

Karen Smith Included on agenda. Green 

P
age 72



Appendix 9(b) 

 DATE OF 
REC 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

UPDATE RAG 
RATING 

10 17.03.21 That a Public Health Covid-19 
recovery plan update be provided to 
the Committee in due course. 

14 
October 
2021 

Arif Rajpura Included on agenda. Green 

11 17.03.21 To recommend to the Executive that 
Blackpool Council establishes its 
own standards for what supported 
housing should look like in the town 
and that scrutiny plays an active role 
in developing these standards. 
 

Tbc Vikki Piper/Kate 
Aldridge 

Report submitted and approved by the Executive. 
Awaiting confirmation of date to be considered by 
scrutiny. 
Next meeting set for 9 November 2021. 

Green 

12 17.03.21 To recommend to the Executive that 
the Council writes a letter to the 
local MPs setting out the key issues 
relating to supported housing in the 
town and requests that they lobby 
Government for new legislation that 
allows for more control over the 
sector. 
 

Tbc Vikki Piper/Kate 
Aldridge 

Letter has been sent to the MPs. Green 
  

13 17.03.21 That the Scrutiny Panel reconvenes 
in due course to consider the issue 
of ‘out of area placements’ further. 
 

Tbc Sharon Davis To be considered at the same meeting as the draft 
standards in recommendation 15 above. 
Meeting set for 9 November 2021 

Green 

14 01.07.21 To receive the ‘breast symptomatic’ 
data for May and June 2021 as soon 
as it was available. 
 

14/07/21 Kate Newton Data received and circulated 14/07/21 to confirm that 
the, as yet unvalidated, performance against the breast 
symptomatic target at Blackpool Teaching Hospitals in 
June 2021 has achieved the 93% target. 
 

Green 

15 01.07.21 To receive a presentation on the 
development of the ICS and ICP in 
due course. 
 

14/10/21 Beth Goodman/ 
Neil Hartley-
Smith 

Included on agenda Green 

P
age 73



Appendix 9(b) 

 DATE OF 
REC 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

UPDATE RAG 
RATING 

16 01.07.21 To receive a glossary of the acronyms 
included in the report. 

 

31 July 
2021 

Kate Newton Future reports will include glossary.  

17 01.07.21 To receive data on the number of 
patients ready to be discharged and 
being delayed due to waits for 
prescription medication. 
 

31 July 
2021 

Peter Murphy Updated provided by Peter Murphy circulated to 
Committee. 

Green 

18 01.07.21 To receive a detailed analysis of re-
admissions to the Urology 
department at BVH following the 
meeting. 
 

31 July 
2021 

Peter Murphy Updated provided by Peter Murphy circulated to 
Committee. 

Green 

19 01.07.21 To request full detail be provided of 
the outstanding ‘must’ and ‘should’ 
dos arising from the Care Quality 
Commission inspection be provided 
following the meeting. 
 

31 July 
2021 

Peter Murphy Updated provided by Peter Murphy circulated to 
Committee. 

Green 

20 01.07.21 Members referred to the COAST 
system discussed in the progress 
update from Blackpool Teaching 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and 
suggested that further information 
be provided on the system to a 
future meeting including a 
breakdown of which departments 
had been awarded bronze, silver or 
gold status 

31 July 
2021 

Peter Murphy Updated provided by Peter Murphy circulated to 
Committee. 

Green 

 

P
age 74


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 1 JULY 2021
	Minutes

	4 EXECUTIVE DECISIONS AND CABINET MEMBER
	Appendix 4(a) - Executive Decisions

	5 WHOLE SYSTEM FLOW AND DISCHARGES
	6 ADULT SERVICES OVERVIEW
	7 RECOVERY OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES AND COVID
	Appendix 7(a) Public Health

	8 DEVELOPMENT OF THE FYLDE COAST PLACE-BASED PARTNERSHIP
	Appendix 8(a) ICP Strategic Narrative FINAL

	9 SCRUTINY WORKPLAN UPDATE REPORT
	Appendix 9a Adult Social Care And Health Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2021-2022
	Appendix 9b Recommendation Monitoring




